
Memo 
To: City Commission 

From: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 

Date: 3-11-16 

Re: March 17, 2016 Work Session 

Please find the attached agenda and supporting documentation for the March 17, 2016 Work 
Session.   

Item 2 – USD 489 Sales Tax Petition  

Please refer to the attached memorandum from John Bird, City Attorney, regarding the USD 489 
sales tax petition. Ellis County has certified that the petition previously circulated by USD 489 
calling for a special election to consider the question of imposing a half-cent sales tax to fund   
USD 489 capital projects is valid. According to State law, when presented a valid petition, the City 
Commission shall pass a resolution setting forth the election. USD 489 is requesting that the 
election date be June 7, 2016. The City Commission does have leeway on the election date if it so 
chooses. John Bird will have a more in-depth presentation at the work session on Thursday.  

Item 3 – Airport Snow Broom Acquisition 

Please refer to the attached memorandum from John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works, 
regarding the purchase of a snow removal broom at the Hays Regional Airport. The City 
Commission was updated on this project at the December 3, 2015 Work Session. Since that work 
session, City staff and the City’s Airport Engineer, Burns and McDonnell, solicited proposals for 
the snow removal equipment with the lowest bid coming from M-B Companies, Inc. of Chilton, 
Wisconsin, at a price of $157,524. Including administration and acquisition costs, the total price for 
the equipment is $173,354 with the City’s share being $17,336. The City Commission will be 
presented with a grant application to be submitted to FAA to fund 90% of the project. This piece of 
equipment is much needed at the Airport and was number one on the City’s and FAA’s priority list. 

Item 4 – Community Comments and Recommendation for 2016-2018 EAS Contract 

The current Essential Air Service (EAS) contract at the Hays Regional Airport expires      
July 31, 2016. The US Department of Transportation solicited proposals for air service for the 
contract period of August 1, 2016 to July 31, 2018. Proposals were received from SkyWest 
Airlines, Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd., and Via Air. The Department of Transportation asked that any 
comments the communities may have on the proposals be submitted by the end of March. City 

City of Hays 
Office of the City Manager 



staff suggests a letter recommending to DOT that SkyWest be selected for the next two-year 
period. City staff feels SkyWest represents the best overall value, level of service, brand, and 
equipment for the Hays Regional Airport. I will have more information at the work session on 
Thursday.  
 
aw   
 



CITY OF HAYS 
CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 

THURSDAY, MARCH 17, 2016 – 6:30 P.M.  
AGENDA 

 
 
 
1. ITEM FOR REVIEW: March 3, 2016 Work Session Notes (PAGE 1) 

DEPARTMENT HEAD RESPONSIBLE: Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 
 

2. ITEM FOR REVIEW: USD 489 Sales Tax Petition (PAGE 7) 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: John T. Bird, City Attorney 
 USD 489 Representative  
 

3. ITEM FOR REVIEW: Airport Snow Broom Acquisition (PAGE 39) 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RESPONSIBLE: Greg Sund, Director of Public Works 
 

4. ITEM FOR REVIEW: Community Comments and Recommendation for 2016-2018 EAS 
Contract (PAGE 91) 
PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 

5. OTHER ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF REQUIRED)  

 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

ANY PERSON WITH A DISABILITY NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 
SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING 
TIME.  EVERY ATTEMPT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE ANY REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE. 





City of Hays 

City Commission 

Work Session Notes 

Thursday, March 3, 2016 – 6:30 p.m. 

 

Present: Eber Phelps, Shaun Musil, James Meier, Henry Schwaller IV, John Bird, 

Lance Jones, Toby Dougherty, and Kim Rupp 

 

February 18, 2016 Work Session Notes  

There were no corrections or additions to the minutes of the work session 

held on February 18, 2016; the minutes stand approved as presented. 

 

I-70 Monument Signs 
 City Staff has been working on the I-70 Monument Signs Project since 

2014. Total project cost for the design and construction of two signs was 

budgeted at $90,000. Rick Rekoske, CVB Director, explained that Request for 

Proposals (RFP) were sent out to nine firms to design/build two monument signs.  

Seven firms responded to the RFP, but only two included a specific design and a 

price for completing all aspects of the project.  The bids are as follows: 

• Tobin Rupe Stoneworks $48,300  

• Commercial Sign  $69,000  

The low bidder, Tobin Rupe Stoneworks, met all the specifications in the RFP 

and indicated that the project would take one month to complete.  

The proposed sign locations are: just east of Commerce Parkway along 

the north side of west bound I-70, and along the south side of I-70 in the area of 

Arnhold Family Park between exits 157 and the Hall Street Bridge for east bound 

traffic approaching Hays.  Preliminary site work will be required to compact the 

base and build a two foot high earthen mound to raise the signs making them 

more noticeable.  This would be accomplished under a separate contract with a 

local dirt contractor at an estimated cost of $3,000 for both locations. 

1



There will be no landscaping around the sign other than the native 

grasses already present in the park and KDOT right of way.  City Parks 

Department will be responsible for future maintenance of the signs and mowing 

around both signs. Preliminary coordination with KDOT has already been 

accomplished.   

Currently the low bid design reads “Hays, KS Est. 1867”.  Discussion 

about how the sign should read took place; whether it should say “Welcome to 

Hays”, “Hays, KS Est. 1867”, “Hays America”, and if the words did change would 

they be visible.  The low bid doesn’t match all the other way finding signs, but it 

matches the limestone.  Rick Rekoske is going to ask Tobin Rupe Stonework’s to 

come up with some different examples to bring back to the Commission meeting.   

 

2016 Street Maintenance – Award of Bid 
 Bids have been received for 2016 Street Maintenance Projects.  Those 

projects include chip seal, seal coat, preservative seal, micro-Surfacing, 

polypatch, mill & overlay, curb and brick repair, diamond grinding, and concrete 

patching. The amount of work proposed totals $1,794,575.70 awarded to seven 

different contractors.  The work would be accomplished at various locations and 

various times throughout the year. 

At the November 5, 2015 City Commission Work Session, staff presented 

a proposed Street Maintenance Program for 2016.  The plan presented to the 

City Commission at that time called for $2,425,000 of contracted work to include 

chip seal, seal coat, polypatch, curb and brick repair, concrete patching, diamond 

grinding, micro-surfacing, and asphalt overlay; along with $42,237 of in-house 

work, $40,000 for a sidewalk program and $50,000 for a pavement condition 

assessment totaled $2,557,237, which is the amount of funding included in the 

2016 Budget for these projects.   

Bids from 12 different contractors were received on February 2, 2016.  

The low bid for Polypatch resulted in a tie, so it was rebid on February 9, 2016.  

The bid documents were structured so that contractors could bid on one or more 

2



of the eleven different projects, and separate contracts could be awarded for 

each type of work. 

John Braun, Assistant Public Works Director, discussed the different types 

of jobs and bid amounts for each job.  He also described how Seal Coat is a 

cheaper cost compared to Chip Seal, and Seal Coat is all our roads need right 

now.   

Discussion was held on the striping of Hall Street and 27th Street; pros and 

cons were discussed and several options were tossed around.  More discussion 

on this topic will be at a following meeting. 

A summary of staff’s recommendation for award of bid is listed below: 

Project Contractor  Low Bid  

Seal Coat 
Circle C 
Paving $180,251.68 

Preservative Seal Proseal $50,090.82 
Micro-surfacing Intermountain $410,396.00 
Polypatch Stripe & Seal $43,470.00 
Mill and Overlay APAC $757,761.00 
Curb & Brick Repair J Corp $96,995.00 
Diamond Grind APAC $164,603.20 
Concrete Patch Sweeney $91,008.00 
Total       $1,794,575.70 

 

At the March 10, 2016 Commission meeting the Commissioners will be 

requested to authorize the City Manager to enter into contracts for construction 

as follows, all to be funded out of Special Highway and City Commission Capital 

Reserve: 

• Circle C Paving in the amount of $180,251.68 for Seal Coat; 

• Proseal in the amount of $50,090.82 for the Preservative Seal 

• Intermountain Slurry Seal in the amount of $410,396.00 for Micro-

Surfacing 

• Stripe & Seal in the amount of $43,470.00 for Polypatch 

• APAC in the amount of $757,761.00 for Mill and Overlay 

• J Corp in the amount of $96,995.00 for Curb and Brick Repair 

3



• APAC in the amount of $164,603.20 for Diamond Grinding 

• Sweeney Pavement Maintenance in the amount of $91,008.00 for 

Concrete Patch 

 

Future Street Projects 
 Bids for the 2016 Street Maintenance Program came in approximately 

$630,000 under budget.  This provides an opportunity to keep those savings to 

help fund future major street reconstruction projects like 8th Street from Milner to 

Vine Street and Allen Street north of 13th Street.  Staff presented some options 

for the City Commission to consider, but recommends saving the remaining 

funds to help fund the six million dollar cost to reconstruct 8th Street and Allen 

Street.   

Staff recommends that the remaining balance of Capital Reserve Funds 

budgeted for Street Maintenance in 2016 be banked toward the $6M cost to 

reconstruct 8th Street from Milner to Vine in 2018 and Allen Street north of 13th 

Street in 2020. 

 

Other Items for Discussion 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager, gave an update on the sewer line repair 

on Main Street.  Sewer has been reconnected to everyone; however, it is not 

finished because of very unstable soil.  

Commissioner Schwaller stated he appreciates the City Manager and 

Mayor going to the site of the accident this past week and he gives his 

condolences and thoughts to the families of those who lost their lives. 

Commissioner Meier stated he is praying for the families. 

Commissioner Musil is praying for the family and friends affected by the 

tragedy and he appreciates everyone who went down there to represent the City.   

Commissioner Phelps extends his heartfelt sympathies to the families 

involved.  He also mentioned the passing of another instrumental person in Hays, 

Lynn Albers.   

4



Commissioner Phelps commented on the water conference they attended 

in Phoenix and he hopes they follow up with the Water Catchment Program they 

learned about. 

 

 
The work session was adjourned at 7:42 p.m. 

 

 

Submitted by: ______________________________________________ 

Jami Breit – Deputy City Clerk 
 

5



6



Commission Work Session Agenda 

Memo 


From: John T. Bird, City Attorney 

Work Session: March 17,2016 

Subject: USD 489 Sales Tax Petition 

Person(s) Responsible: City Attorney 

SUMMARY 
USD 489 has decided to pursue a capital improvement plan and to attempt to finance it by use of 
the City of Hays' sales tax authority. School Districts currently do not have legal authority to 
levy sales taxes and they rely on State funds and real estate and personal property taxes to 
finance such projects. 

Current State law allows cities and counties to levy sales taxes under certain circumstances, 
which USD 489 contends should be done to help it pay for its Capital Improvement Program. 

BACKGROUND 
The USD 489 Capital Improvement Program will cost more than $94 million, according to its 
presentation to the City Commission on January 7, 2016. 

USD 489 has been deciding how to fund the Program. School Districts may put questions to the 
voters at special elections, called "bond issue elections" regarding use of bonds sold to fund 
capital improvements. USD 489 wants to have its own election to get approval for the Program. 
It wants the City to have an election to get approval to levy a sales tax to give to the School 
District to pay the loans (in the form of bonds) which would be used to build the improvements. 

The City has two kinds of sales taxes it can levy. The first is "general purpose." The upper limit 
of general purpose sales tax for Hays is 2%. The second is "special purpose." The maximum for 
that tax is 1%. 

Hays already has a 1.75% general purpose sales tax. Of the 1.75% general purpose tax, 1.25% is 
devoted/limited to the General Fund and .50% for water projects. There is not a special purpose 
sales tax in place. General Purpose sales taxes are permanent and can only be changed by formal 
action of the Governing Body. Special Purpose sales taxes can only be levied for a maximum of 
10 years and Hays has typically sunsetted its special purposes sales tax keyed to payoff of the 
debt for the special purpose or 10 years, whichever is sooner. 

7



To place a sales tax on a City election ballot, a City can authorize the question to be placed on a 
ballot to be voted on by Hays voters. The City of Hays has declined to do that. 

The only other way to place the question on an election ballot is for a good and sufficient 
petition, signed by 10% of the electors of the City, to be properly filed. The requirements for 
filing are contained in State statutes. Before the County Clerk is involved, the County Counselor 
has to have been presented with the question to be submitted and give an opinion that the form of 
the question is legal. Because the Ellis County Counselor is also the USD 489 attorney, the Ellis 
County Attorney, Tom Drees, issued a written advisory opinion that the question's form on the 
proposed petition is legal and complies with the law governing submission of such questions. 
Then, if such an opinion is issued, the County Clerk examines the petitions properly filed in that 
office, all in one group. The Ellis County Clerk is reported to have ruled that the required 
number of valid signatures has been presented according to law, so an election ensues, using the 
question approved by the County Attorney. The County Clerk, in the examination of the 
signatures, had to determine that the petition was properly signed by not less than 10% of the 
electors of the City, as certified in the most recent certification to the Secretary of State. The 
County Clerk was required to count as valid only signatures by electors in the City of Hays, 
Kansas. The District has told the Commission in a letter from its President that the County Clerk 
has so certified. 

After a petition is certified as sufficiently filed by the County Clerk and it is properly filed with 
the City, then the City, unless it authorizes a special election, shall hold the sales tax ballot 
question election at the "next succeeding primary or general election .. .in which the [City] is 
participating." The timing of the election is a decision to be made by the City Commission. 

DISCUSSION 
The Commission now has been told the petition has been properly filed and signed. It now has 
to make a decision as to whether to call the election for a special date or the next Primary or 
General election in which the City is a participant. 

Because of the ambiguous wording of the statute defining "next election", it requires a strained 
reading to say that the upcoming State primary or general elections qualify as being the next 
elections in which the City is g participant. There is no question that the electors of the City of 
Hays will be eligible to vote in August of 2016 and October of 2016, but to say that the City of 
Hays, as a municipal entity, is a "participant" requires that the definition be stretched, if not 
broken. It is important that the election be properly conducted, as if it is not, it will be subject to 
challenge. 

The elections of 2017, in August and November, are definitely elections in which the City, as a 
taxing subdivision, will be a "participant." The Commission will have to decide if it wants to 
interpret the statute as also meaning that August of2016 and November of2016 are elections in 
which the City as a taxing subdivision is a participant. It could choose to use either date as a 
"special election" and avoid the debate of whether either is the next election date. 

8



The intentions of USD 489 will need to be taken into account. Recent news reports are that it 
will conduct its bond issue election on a date already selected. Reports are also that it might 
conduct an election with two projects proposed, separately. 

The question has been proposed for the City to ask its voters is whether the City sales tax of .5% 
should be imposed and the proceeds used to pay towards the School District's Capital 
Improvement Project, if the School District's election results in approval by the School District's 
voters, in the amount of not to exceed $94,035,000.00, to pay the costs enumerated, including 
construction, renovations, and additions of and to District facilities, costs of related infrastructure 
and necessary easements appurtenant, and costs of issuance and interest of the general obligation 
bonds of USD 489. The start of the tax would be the sooner of October 1, 2018, or termination 
of Ellis County's .50% sales tax of May, 2013 and it would end 10 years after commencement. 
Theoretically, if the City sales tax yields more than the District's expenditures, by implication, 
the City sales tax could terminate earlier than 10 years, because there would be no more principal 
and interest to pay. As a practical matter, it appears unlikely that the City sales tax will yield 
enough to pay the loans/bonds off within 10 years. 

Because the drafters of the Petition chose to make the imposition of the proposed half percent 
sales tax contingent on both the voters of the City approving this, and the voters of the District 
approving the bond issue question, and that the votes have to be at an election held at the same 
time, if the School District selects a date different from the date selected by the City 
Commission, the sales tax cam10t be implemented and used to pay the School District's bonds. 
For the sales tax revenues to be used to pay the bonds, the elections have to occur on the same 
date. 

Thus, the choices of the City Commission are whether to set the City sales tax election for the 
date the School District says it intends to have its election, or set it for another date and see if the 
School District decides to set its election for that date. 

The other issue that the City Commission should consider is costs of the election. The law 
requires the City to pay for its elections and the sales tax election is the City's election, even 
though it is precipitated by others. The District could volunteer to pay for it but is not required to 
do that. 

LEGAL CONSIDERATION 
See above discussion. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION 
The Financial Officer will inform the Commission of the administrative costs of processing sales 
tax receipts for another governmental entity. Other financial impacts ofthe proposed tax include 
the consideration that use of the USD 489 tax will reduce the amount available to the City for its 
own projects, limiting it to .5% for 10 years. The financial impact of imposing the requested .5% 
tax on overall receipts are unknown although it can certainly be assumed that potential shoppers 
will not decide to shop in Hays because it does have a .5% special purpose tax. None of that, 
however, impacts the setting of the date of the election. 

9

http:94,035,000.00


OPTIONS 

The City Commission has the options to: 

1. 	 Set an election date coinciding with the USD 489's reported election date of June 7, 
2016. 

2. 	 Set an election date for some other date, with the following choices: 
A. 	The Primary Election date for the next City Primary on August 8, 2017. 
B. 	 The General Election date for the next City Election on November 7,2017. 
C. 	 Any date (Tuesday) between June 7, 2016, and August 8, 2017. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff believes that this is purely a policy decision and the Commission sho~ld select the date for 
the election which best serves the interest of its citizens and the municipality. 

ACTION REQUESTED 
Set the election date, via the appropriate Resolution. 

SUPPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
Draft Resolution. 
Copies of Statutes 
Correspondence from USD 489 
Petition approval letter from County Attorney 

10



12-187. Countywide and city retailers' sales taxes; procedure for imposition; election required; rate; 
use of revenue; validation of certain elections; continuation in effect of certain taxes; authority for 
imposition; statement of purpose. (a) No city shall impose a retailers' sales tax under the provisions of this act 
without the governing body of such city having first submitted such proposition to and having received the approval of 
a majority of the electors of the city voting thereon at an election called and held therefor. The governing body of any 
city may submit the question of imposing a retailers' sales tax and the governing body shall be required to submit the 
question upon submission of a petition signed by electors of such city equal in number to not less than 10% of the 
electors of such city. 
(b) (1) The board of county commissioners of any county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax to the electors at an election called and held thereon, and any such board shall be required to 
submit the question upon submission of a petition signed by electors of such county equal in number to not less than 
10% of the electors of such county who voted at the last preceding general election for the office of secretary of state, 
or upon receiving resolutions requesting such an election passed by not less than 2/3 of the membership of the 
governing body of each of one or more cities within such county which contains a population of not less than 25% of 
the entire population of the county, or upon receiving resolutions requesting such an election passed by 2/3 of the 
membership of the governing body of each of one or more taxing subdivisions within such county which levy not less 
than 25% of the property taxes levied by all taxing subdivisions within the county. 
(2) The board of county commissioners of Anderson, Atchison, Barton, Brown, Butler, Chase, Cowley, Cherokee, 
Crawford, Ford, Franklin, jefferson, Linn, Lyon, Marion, Miami, Montgomery, Neosho, Osage, Ottawa, Reno, Riley, 
Saline, Seward, Sumner, Wlbaunsee, Wilson and Wyandotte counties may submit the question of imposing a 
countywide retailers' sales tax and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing the 
construction or remodeling of a courthouse, jail. law enforcement center facility or other county administrative facility, 
to the electors at an election called and held thereon. The tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire when 
sales tax sufficient to pay all of the costs incurred in the financing of such facility has been collected by retailers as 
determined by the secretary of revenue. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to allow the rate of tax imposed 
by Butler, Chase, Cowley, Lyon, Montgomery, Neosho, Riley, Sumner or Wilson county pursuant to this paragraph to 
exceed or be imposed at any rate other than the rates prescribed in K.S.A. 12-189, and amendments thereto. 
(3) (A) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, the result of the election held on November 8, 1988, on the 
question submitted by the board of county commissioners of jackson county for the purpose of increasing its 
countywide retailers' sales tax by 1 % is hereby declared valid, and the revenue received therefrom by the county shall 
be expended solely for the purpose of financing the Banner Creek reservoir project. The tax im posed pursuant to this 
paragraph shall take effect on the effective date of this act and shall expire not later than five years after such date. 
(B) The result of the election held on November 8, 1994, on the question submitted by the board of county 
commissioners of Ottawa county for the purpose of increasing its countywide retailers' sales tax by 1% is hereby 
declared valid, and the revenue received therefrom by the county shall be expended solely for the purpose of 
financing the erection, construction and furnishing of a law enforcement center and jail facility. 
(C) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, the result of the election held on November 2, 2004, on the 
question submitted by the board of county commissioners of Sedgwick county for the purpose of increasing its 
countywide retailers' sales tax by 1% is hereby declared valid, and the revenue received therefrom by the county shall 
be used only to pay the costs of: (i) Acquisition of a site and constructing and equipping thereon a new regional events 
center, associated parking and infrastructure improvements and related appurtenances thereto, to be located in the 
downtown area of the city of Wichita, Kansas, (the "downtown arena"); (ii) design for the Kansas coliseum complex and 
construction of improvements to the pavilions; and (iii) establishing an operating and maintenance reserve for the 
downtown arena and the Kansas coliseum complex. The tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall commence on 
july 1, 2005, and shall terminate not later than 30 months after the commencement thereof. 
(D) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, the result of the election held on August 5, 2008, on the question 
submitted by the board of county commissioners of Lyon county for the purpose of increasing its countywide retailers' 
sales tax by 1 % is hereby declared valid, and the revenue received therefrom by the county shall be expended for the 
purposes of ad valorem tax reduction and capital outlay. The tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall terminate 
not later than five years after the commencement thereof. 
(E) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, the result of the election held on August 5, 2008, on the question 
submitted by the board of county commissioners of Rawlins county for the purpose of increasing its countywide 
retailers' sales tax by 0.75% is hereby declared valid, and the revenue received therefrom by the county shall be 
expended for the purposes of financing the costs of a swimming pool. The tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph 
shall terminate not later than 15 years after the commencement thereof or upon payment of all costs authorized 
pursuant to this paragraph in the financing of such project. 
(F) The result of the election held on December 1, 2009, on the question submitted by the board of county 
commissioners of Chautauqua county for the purpose of increasing its countywide retailers' sales tax by 1% is hereby 
declared valid, and the revenue received from such tax by the county shall be expended for the purposes of finanCing 
the costs of constructing, furnishing and equipping a county jail and law enforcement center and necessary 
improvements appurtenant to such jail and law enforcement center. Any tax imposed pursuant to authority granted in 
this paragraph shall terminate upon payment of all costs authorized pursuant to this paragraph incurred in the 
financing of the project described in this paragraph. 
(4) The board of county commissioners of Rnney and Ford counties may submit the question of imposing a 
countywide retailers' sales tax at the rate of 0.25% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of 
financing all or any portion of the cost to be paid by Finney or Ford county for construction of highway projects 
identified as system enhancements under the provisions of paragraph (5) of subsection (b) of K.S.A. 68-2314, and 
amendments thereto, to the electors at an election called and held thereon. Such election shall be called and held in 
the manner provided by the general bond law. The tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire upon the 
payment of all costs authorized pursuant to this paragraph in the financing of such highway projects. Nothing in this 
paragraph shall be construed to allow the rate of tax imposed by Finney or Ford county pursuant to this paragraph to 
exceed the maximum rate prescribed in K.S .A. 12-189, and amendments thereto. If any funds remain upon the 
payment of all costs authorized pursuant to this paragraph in the financing of such highway projects in Finney county, 
the state treasurer shall remit such funds to the treasurer of Finney county and upon receipt of such moneys shall be 

11



deposited to the credit of the county road and bridge fund. If any funds remain upon the payment of all costs 
authorized pursuant to this paragraph in the financing of such highway projects in Ford county, the state treasurer 
shall remit such funds to the treasurer of Ford county and upon receipt of such moneys shall be deposited to the 
credit of the county road and bridge fund. 
(5) The board county commissioners of any county submit the question of imposing retailers' sales tax 

rate of 0.2..5%, 0.5%, 0.75% or pledging revenue received therefrom for the of financinSl 
pr"ovision of Itil care services, enumerated in question, to electors at an called and held 
thereon. VVhenever county im tax pursuant trlis paragraph, imposed to paragraph 
of subsection (a) by any city located in such county shall expire upon the effective date of the imposition of the 
countywide tax, and thereafter the state treasurer shall remit to each such city that portion of the countywide tax 
revenue collected by retailers within such city as certified by the director of taxation. The tax imposed pursuant to this 
paragraph shall be deemed to be in addition to the rate limitations prescribed in K.S.A. 12-189, and amendments 
thereto. As used in this paragraph, health care services shall include, but not be limited to, the following: Local health 
departments. county hospitals. city or county nursing homes. health services 
immunizations. care and postponement into nursing homes by home services, 
flealth services, health physician or care worker recl'uitment, health education, emergency 
medical services, rural health clinics, integration of health care services, home health services and rural health 
networks. 
(6) The board of county commissioners of Allen county may submit the question of imposing a countywide retailers' 
sales tax at the rate of 0.5% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing the costs of 
operation and construction of a solid waste disposal area or the modification of an existing landfill to comply with 
federal regulations the electors election called held thereon. imposed this paragraph 
shall expire payment costs incurred financing project Nothing in this 
paragraph construed to I'ate of tax by Allen pursuant to this to exceed 
be imposed at any rate other than the rates prescribed .A. 12-189, amendments thereto. 
(7) The board of county commissioners of Clay, Dickinson and Miami county may submit the question of imposing a 
countywide retailers' sales tax at the rate of 0.50% in the case of Clay and Dickinson county and at a rate of up to 1% 
in the case of Miami county, and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing the costs of 
roadway construction and improvement to the electors at an election called and held thereon. Except as otherwise 
provided, the posed pursuant this paragraph expire after" from the such tax is 
collected. The the election on November 2.004, on the submitted board of county 
commiSSioners county for of for an additional five-year period countywide retailers' 
sales tax imposed pursuant to this in Miami is hereby valid. The countywide retailers' 
tax imposed pursuant to this subsection in Clay and Miami county may be extended or reenacted for additional five
year periods upon the board of county commissioners of Clay and Miami county submitting such question to the 
electors at an election called and held thereon for each additional Five-year period as provided by law. 
(8) The board of county commissioners of Sherman county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales the rate of pledging the I'evenue received therefrom for the of financing 
costs of street roadway im provements to the electors an election and held rhe tax 
pursuant to paragraph shall upon payment all costs authorized pursuant paragraph 
financing of such 
(9) The board county commissioners of Cowley, Crawford, Russell and Woodson county may submit the question of 
imposing a countywide retailers' sales tax at the rate of 0.5% in the case of Crawford, Russell and Woodson county and 
at a rate of up to 0.25%, in the case of Cowley county and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of 
financing economic development initiatives or public infrastructure projects. The tax imposed pursuant to this 
paragraph shall after five years the date is first collected. 
(10) The board county com of Franklin may submit question of a countywide 
retailers' sales the rate of and pledging revenue received therefrom for of financing 
recreational The tax pursuant to this shall payment costs authorized in 
financing such faciiities. 
(11) The board of county commissioners of Douglas county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of 0.25% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purposes of conservation, 
access and management of open space; preservation of cultural heritage; and economic development projects and 
activities. 
(12) The board (ounty commissioner"s of Shawnee may subm question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales the rate of and pledging revenue received therefrom to the city of Topeka for 
purpose of the costs of the Topeka boulevard bridge public infrastructure improvements 
associated with project to the electors at an election called and held thereon. The tax pursuant to this 
paragraph shall expire upon payment of all costs authorized in financing such project. 
(13) The board of county commissioners of Jackson county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at a rate of 0.4% and pledging the revenue received therefrom as follows: 50% of such revenues for 
the purpose of financing for economic development initiatives; and 50% of such revenues for the purpose of financing 
public infrastructure projects to the at an election called and held The tax posed pursuant to this 
paragraph shall after seven from the date tax is first The board commissioners 
of Jackson submit the of imposing countywide retailers' sales tax at a 0.4% which 

shall take after the the tax irn pursuant to ragraph prior effective daLe 
this act, and pledging the revenue received therefrom the purpose of financing public infrastructure projects to the 
electors at an election called and held thereon. Such tax shall expire after seven years from the date such tax is first 
collected. 
(14) The board of county commissioners of Neosho county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales the rate of pledging revenue received thel'efrom for the of financing 
costs of roadway construction provement to electors at an called thereon. The 
imposed pursuant this paragra shall expire upon of all costs authorized pursuant this paragraph in 

finanCing project. 

12



(15) The board of county commissioners of Saline county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of up to 0.5% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing 
the costs of construction and operation of an expo center to the electors at an election called and held thereon. The 
tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire after five years from the date such tax is first collected. 
(16) The board of county commissioners of Harvey county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of 1.0% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing the 
costs of property tax relief, economic development initiatives and public infrastructure improvements to the electors 
at an election called and held thereon. 
(17) The board of county commissioners of Atchison county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of 0.25% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing the 
costs of construction and maintenance of sports and recreational facilities to the electors at an election called and 
held thereon. The tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire upon payment of all costs authorized in 
financing such facilities. 
(18) The board of county commissioners of Wlbaunsee county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of 0.5% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing the 
costs of bridge and roadway construction and improvement to the electors at an election called and held thereon. The 
tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire after 15 years from the date such tax is first collected. 
(19) The board of county commissioners of jefferson county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of 1% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing the 
costs of roadway construction and improvement to the electors at an election called and held thereon. The tax 
imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire after six years from the date such tax is first collected. The 
countywide retailers' sales tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph may be extended or reenacted for additional six
year periods upon the board of county commissioners of jefferson county submitting such question to the electors at 
an election called and held thereon for each additional six-year period as provided by law. 
(20) The board of county commissioners of Riley county may submit the question of imposing a countywide retailers' 
sales tax at the rate of up to 1% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing the costs 
of bridge and roadway construction and improvement to the electors at an election called and held thereon. The tax 
imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire after five years from the date such tax is first collected. 
(21) The board of county commissioners of johnson county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of 0.25% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing the 
construction and operation costs of public safety projects, including, but not limited to, a jail, detention center, sheriffs 
resource center, crime lab or other county administrative or operational facility dedicated to public safety, to the 
electors at an election called and held thereon. The tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire after 10 years 
from the date such tax is first collected. The countywide retailers' sales tax imposed pursuant to this subsection may 
be extended or reenacted for additional periods not exceeding 10 years upon the board of county commissioners of 
johnson county submitting such question to the electors at an election called and held thereon for each additional ten
year period as provided by law. 
(22) The board of county commissioners of VVilson county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of up to 1% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing 
the costs of roadway construction and improvements to federal highways, the development of a new industrial park 
and other public infrastructure improvements to the electors at an election called and held thereon. The tax imposed 
pursuant to this paragraph shall expire upon payment of all costs authorized pursuant to this paragraph in the 
financing of such project or projects. 
(23) The board of county commissioners of Butler county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of either 0.25%,0.5%,0.75% or 1% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for 
the purpose of financing the costs of public safety capital projects or bridge and roadway construction projects, or 
both, to the electors at an election called and held thereon. The tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire 
upon payment of all costs authorized in financing such projects. 
(24) The board of county commissioners of Barton county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of up to 0.5% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing 
the costs of roadway and bridge construction and improvement and infrastructure development and improvement to 
the electors at an election called and held thereon. The tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire after 10 
years from the date such tax is first collected. 
(25) The board of county commissioners of jefferson county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of 0.25% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing the 
costs of the county's obligation as participating employer to make employer contributions and other required 
contributions to the Kansas public employees retirement system for eligible employees of the county who are 
members of the Kansas police and firemen's retirement system, to the electors at an election called and held 
thereon. The tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire upon payment of all costs authorized in financing 
such purpose. 
(26) The board of county commissioners of Pottawatomie county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of up to 0.5% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the purpose of financing 
the costs of construction or remodeling of a courthouse, jail. law enforcement center facility or other county 
administrative facility, or public infrastructure improvements, or both, to the electors at an election called and held 
thereon. The tax imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire upon payment of all costs authorized in financing 
such project or projects. 
(27) The board of county commissioners of Kingman county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of 0.25%, 0.5%, 0.75% or 1% and pledging the revenue received therefrom for the 
purpose of financing the costs of constructing and furnishing a law enforcement center and ja il facility and the costs of 
roadway and bridge improvements to the electors at an election called and held thereon. The tax imposed pursuant to 
this paragraph shall expire not later than 20 years from the date such tax is first collected. 
(28) The board of county commissioners of Edwards county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of 0.375% and pledging the revenue therefrom for the purpose of financing the costs of 
economic development initiatives to the electors at an election called and held thereon. 

13

http:0.25%,0.5%,0.75


(29) The board of county commissioners of Rooks county may submit the question of imposing a countywide 
retailers' sales tax at the rate of 0.5% and pledging the revenue therefrom for the purpose of financing the costs of 
constructing or remodeling and furnishing a jail facility to the electors at an election called and held thereon. The tax 
imposed pursuant to this paragraph shall expire upon the payment of all costs authorized in financing such project or 
projects. 
(c) The boards of county commissioners of any two or more contiguous counties, upon adoption of a joint resolution 
by such boards, may submit the question of imposing a retailers' sales tax within such counties to the electors of such 
counties at an election called and held thereon and such boards of any two or more contiguous counties shall be 
required to submit such question upon submission of a petition in each of such counties, signed by a number of 
electors of each of such counties where submitted equal in number to not less than 10% of the electors of each of 
such counties who voted at the last preceding general election for the office of secretary of state, or upon receiving 
resolutions requesting such an election passed by not less than 2/3 of the membership of the governing body of each 
of one or more cities within each of such counties which contains a population of not less than 25% of the entire 
population of each of such counties, or upon receiving resolutions requesting such an election passed by 2/3 of the 
membership of the governing body of each of one or more taxing subdivisions within each of such counties which levy 
not less than 25% of the property taxes levied by all taxing subdivisions within each of such counties. 
(d) Any city retailers' sales tax being levied by a city prior to july 1, 2006, shall continue in effect until repealed in the 
manner provided herein for the adoption and approval of such tax or until repealed by the adoption of an ordinance for 
such repeal. Any countywide retailers' sales tax in the amount of 0.5% or 1% in effect on july 1, 1990, shall continue in 
effect until repealed in the manner provided herein for the adoption and approval of such tax. 
(e) Any city or county proposing to adopt a retailers' sales tax shall give notice of its intention to submit such 
proposition for approval by the electors in the manner required by K.S.A. 10-120, and amendments thereto. The 
notices shall state the time of the election and the rate and effective date of the proposed tax. If a majority of the 
electors voting thereon at such election fail to approve the proposition, such proposition may be resubmitted under 
the conditions and in the manner provided in this act for submission of the proposition. If a majority of the electors 
voting thereon at such election shall approve the levying of such tax, the governing body of any such city or county 
shall provide by ordinance or resolution, as the case may be, for the levy of the tax. Any repeal of such tax or any 
reduction or increase in the rate thereof, within the limits prescribed by K.5.A. 12-189, and amendments thereto, shall 
be accomplished in the manner provided herein for the adoption and approval of such tax except that the repeal of 
any such city retailers' sales tax may be accomplished by the adoption of an ordinance so providing. 
(f) The sufficiency of the number of signers of any petition filed under this section shall be determined by the county 
election officer. Every election held under this act shall be conducted by the county election officer. 
(g) The governing body of the city or county proposing to levy any retailers' sales tax shall specify the purpose or 
purposes for which the revenue would be used, and a statement generally describing such purpose or purposes shall 
IMSI~lOOecl-ag.!i!t7~~tof$Jie§:J~tldt ~slttbm4, § 2; L. 1983, ch. 57, § 1; L. 1987, ch. 63, § 1; L. 1988, ch. 73, § 1; L. 
1989, ch. 57, § 1; L. 1990, ch. 68, § 3; L. 1990, ch. 69, § 1; L. 1992, ch. 198, § 5; L. 1992, ch. 279, § 1; L. 1992, ch. 251, 
§ 1; L. 1993, ch. 240, § 1; L. 1994, ch. 354, § 1; L. 1995, ch. 12, § 1; L. 1995, ch. 246, § 1; L. 1998, ch. 11, § 1; L. 1998, 
ch. 188, § 1; L. 1999, ch. 1. § 2; L. 2000, ch. 140, § 1; L. 2002, ch. 185, § 34; L. 2003, ch. 147, § 32; L. 2004, ch. 173, § 
3; L. 2005, ch. 47, § 1; L. 2005, ch. 186, § 2; L. 2006, ch. 9, § 1; L. 2006, ch. 191. § 1; L. 2007, ch. 158, § 6; L. 2007, ch. 
195, § 52; L. 2008, ch. 100, § 3; L. 2009, ch. 1, § 1; L. 2010, ch. 3, § 1; L. 2010, ch. 83, § 1; L. 2011, ch. 88, § 1; L. 2014, 
ch. 132, § 1; july 1. 
Revisor's Note; 

Section was also amended by L. 2005, ch. 24, § 1 and L. 2005, ch. 119, § 1, but those versions were repealed by L. 2005, ch. 186, § 22. 
Section not reconciled following amendments by three bills during 2006 session, see also 12-187b. 
Section was also amended by L. 2007, ch. 153, § 1, but that version was repealed by L. 2007, ch. 195, § 59. 

14



12-189. Same; rates, general and special purposes, exceptions for certain counties; administration 
and collection by state; refunds; remittance to cities and counties; monthly reports; confidentiality 
requirements. The rate of any city retailers' sales tax shall be fixed in increments of 0.05% and in an amount not to 
exceed 2% for general purposes and not to exceed 1% for special purposes which shall be determined by the 
governing body of the city. For any retailers' sales tax irnposed by a city for special purposes, such city shall specify 
the purposes for which such tax is imposed. All such special purpose retailers' sales taxes irnposed by a city shall 
expire after 10 years from the date such tax is first collected. The rate of any countywide retailers' sales tax shall be 
fixed in an amount not to exceed 1% and shall be fixed in increments of 0.25%, and which amount shall be 
determined by the board of county commissioners, except that: 
(a) The board of county commissioners of Wlbaunsee county, for the purposes of paragraph (2) of subsection (b) of 
K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 1.25%; the board of county commissioners of Osage or 
Reno county, for the purposes of paragraph (2) of subsection (b) of K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix 
such rate at 1.25% or 1.5%; the board of county commissioners of Cherokee, Crawford, Ford, Saline, Seward or 
Wyandotte county, for the purposes of paragraph (2) of subsection (b) of K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, 
may fix such rate at 1.5%, the board of county commissioners of Atchison county, for the purposes of paragraph (2) of 
subsection (b) of K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 1.5% or 1.75%; the board of county 
commissioners of Anderson, Barton, jefferson or Ottawa county, for the purposes of paragraph (2) of subsection (b) of 
K.S.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 2%; the board of county commissioners of Marion 
county, for the purposes of paragraph (2) of subsection (b) of K.S.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such 
rate at 2.5%; the board of county commissioners of Franklin, Linn and Miami counties, for the purposes of paragraph 
(2) of subsection (b) of K.S.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at a percentage which is equal to 
the sum of the rate allowed to be imposed by the respective board of county commissioners on july 1. 2007, plus up 
to 1.0%; and the board of county commissioners of Brown county, for the purposes of paragraph (2) of subsection (b) 
of K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at up to 2%; 
(b) the board of county commissioners of jackson county, for the purposes of paragraph (3) of subsection (b) of 
K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 2%; 
(c) the boards of county commissioners of Finney and Ford counties, for the purposes of paragraph (4) of subsection 
(b) of K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 0.25%; 
(d) the board of county commissioners of any county for the purposes of paragraph (5) of subsection (b) of K.S.A. 
12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at a percentage which is equal to the sum of the rate allowed to 
be imposed by a board of county commissioners on the effective date of this act plus 0.25%, 0.5%, 0.75% or 1%, as 
the case requires; 
(e) the board of county commissioners of Dickinson county, for the purposes of paragraph (7) of subsection (b) of 
K.S.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 1.5%, and the board of county commissioners of Miami 
county, for the purposes of paragraph (7) of subsection (b) of K.5 .A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such 
rate at 1.25%,1.5%,1.75% or 2%; 
(f) the board of county commissioners of Sherman county, for the purposes of paragraph (8) of subsection (b) of 
K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 2.25%; 
(g) the board of county commissioners of Crawford or Russell county for the purposes of paragraph (9) of subsection 
(b) of K.S.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 1.5%; 
(h) the board of county commissioners of Franklin county, for the purposes of paragraph (10) of subsection (b) of 
K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 1.75%; 
(i) the board of county commissioners of Douglas county, for the purposes of paragraph (11) of subsection (b) of 
K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 1.25%; 
(j) the board of county commissioners of jackson county, for the purposes of subsection (b)(13) of K.S.A. 12-187, and 
amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 1.4%; 
(k) the board of county commissioners of Sedgwick county, for the purposes of paragraph (3)(C) of subsection (b) of 
K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 2%; 
(I) the board of county commissioners of Neosho county, for the purposes of paragraph (14) of subsection (b) of 
K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 1.0% or 1.5%; 
(m) the board of county commissioners of Saline county, for the purposes of paragraph (15) of subsection (b) of 
K.S.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at up to 1.5%; 
(n) the board of county commissioners of Harvey county, for the purposes of paragraph (16) of subsection (b) of 
K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 2.0%; 
(0) the board of county commissioners of Atchison county, for the purpose of paragraph (17) of subsection (b) of 
K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at a percentage which is equal to the sum of the rate 
allowed to be imposed by the board of county commissioners of Atchison county on the effective date of this act plus 
0.25%; 
(p) the board of county commissioners of Wlbaunsee county, for the purpose of paragraph (18) of subsection (b) of 
K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at a percentage which is equal to the sum of the rate 
allowed to be imposed by the board of county commissioners of Wabaunsee county on july I, 2007, plus 0.5%; 
(q) the board of county commissioners of jefferson county, for the purpose of paragraphs (19) and (25) of subsection 
(b) of K.S.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 2.25%; 
(r) the board of county commissioners of Riley county, for the purpose of paragraph (20) of subsection (b) of K.S.A. 
12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at a percentage which is equal to the sum of the rate allowed to 
be imposed by the board of county commissioners of Riley county on july I, 2007, plus up to 1%; 
(s) the board of county commissioners of johnson county for the purposes of paragraph (21) of subsection (b) of 
K.S.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at a percentage which is equal to the sum of the rate 
allowed to be imposed by the board of county commissioners of johnson county on july I, 2007, plus 0.25%; 
(t) the board of county commissioners of Wilson county for the purposes of paragraph (22) of subsection (b) of K.S.A. 
12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at up to 2%; 
(u) the board of county commissioners of Butler county for the purposes of paragraph (23) of subsection (b) of K.5.A. 
12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at a percentage which is equal to the sum of the rate otherwise 
allowed pursuant to this section, plus 0.25%, 0.5%, 0.75% or 1%; 

15

http:1.25%,1.5%,1.75


(v) the board of county commissioners of Barton county, for the purposes of paragraph (24) of subsection (b) of 
K.5 .A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at up to 1.5%; 
(w) the board of county commissioners of Lyon county, for the purposes of paragraph (3)(D) of subsection (b) of 
K.5 .A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 1.5%; 
(x) the board of county commissioners of Rawlins county, for the purposes of paragraph (3)(E) of subsect ion (b) of 
K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 1.75%; 
(y) the board of county commissioners of Chautauqua county, for the purposes of paragraph (3)(F) of subsection (b) 

of K.S.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 2.0%; 

(z) the board of county commissioners of Pottawatomie county, for the purposes of paragraph (26) of subsection (b) 

of K.5.A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at up to 1.5%; 

(aa) the board of county commissioners of Kingman county, for the purposes of paragraph (27) of subsection (b) of 

K.5 .A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at a percentage which is equal to the sum of the rate 

otherwise allowed pursuant to this section, plus 0.25%, 0.5%, 0.75%, or 1%; 

(bb) the board of county commissioners of Edwards county, for the purposes of paragraph (28) of subsection (b) of 

K.5 .A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at 1.375%; and 

(cc) the board of county commissioners of PDoks county, for the purposes of paragraph (29) of subsection (b) of 

K.5 .A. 12-187, and amendments thereto, may fix such rate at up to 1.5%. 

Any county or city levying a retailers' sales tax is hereby prohibited from administering or collecting such tax locally, 

but shall utilize the services of the state department of revenue to administer, enforce and collect such tax. Except as 

otherwise specifically provided in K.S .A. 12-189a, and amendments thereto, such tax shall be identical in its 

application, and exemptions therefrom, to the Kansas retailers' sales tax act and all laws and administrative rules and 

regulations of the state department of revenue relating to the Kansas retailers' sales tax shall apply to such local 

sales tax insofar as such laws and rules and regulations may be made applicable . The state director of taxation is 

hereby authorized to administer, enforce and collect such local sales taxes and to adopt such rules and regulations as 

may be necessary for the efficient and effective administration and enforcement thereof. 

Upon receipt of a certified copy of an ordinance or resolution authorizing the levy of a local retailers' sales tax, the 

director of taxation shall cause such taxes to be collected within or without the boundaries of such taxing subdivision 

at the same time and in the same manner provided for the collection of the state retailers' sales tax. Such copy shall 

be submitted to the director of taxation within 30 days after adoption of any such ordinance or resolution . All moneys 

collected by the director of taxation under the provisions of this section shall be credited to a county and city retailers' 

sales tax fund which fund is hereby established in the state treasury, except that all moneys collected by the director 

of taxation pursuant to the authority granted in paragraph (22) of subsection (b) of K.S .A. 12-187, and amendments 

thereto, shall be credited to the Wilson county capital improvements fund. Any refund due on any county or city 

retailers' sales tax collected pursuant to this act shall be paid out of the sales tax refund fund and reimbursed by the 

director of taxation from collections of local retailers' sales tax revenue. Except for local retailers' sales tax revenue 

required to be deposited in the redevelopment bond fund established under K.5.A. 74-8927, and amendments 

thereto, all local retailers' sales tax revenue collected within any county or city pursuant to this act shall be 

apportioned and remitted at least quarterly by the state treasurer, on instruction from the director of taxation, to the 

treasurer of such county or city. 

Revenue that is received from the imposition of a local retailers' sales tax which exceeds the amount of revenue 

required to pay the costs of a special project for which such revenue was pledged shall be credited to the city or 

county general fund, as the case requires . 

The director of taxation shall provide, upon request by a city or county clerk or treasurer or finance officer of any city or 

county levying a local retailers' sales tax, monthly reports identifying each retailer doing business in such city or 

county or making taxable sales sourced to such city or county, setting forth the tax liability and the amount of such 

tax remitted by each retailer during the preceding month and identifying each business location maintained by the 

retailer and such retailer's sales or use tax registration or account number. Such report shall be made available to the 

clerk or treasurer or finance officer of such city or county within a reasonable time after it has been requested from 

the director of taxation. The director of taxation shall be allowed to assess a reasonable fee for the issuance of such 

report. Information received by any city or county pursuant to this section shall be confidential, and it shall be unlawful 

for any officer or employee of such city or county to divulge any such information in any manner. Any violation of this 

paragraph by a city or county officer or employee is a class A misdemeanor, and such officer or employee shall be 

dismissed from office . Reports of violations of this paragraph shall be investigated by the attorney general. The district 

attorney or county attorney and the attorney general shall have authority to prosecute violations of this paragraph . 

History: L. 1978, ch . 56, § 3; L. 1979, ch. 326, § 3; L. 1982, ch. 64, § 3; L. 1983, ch . 58, § 3; L. 1986, ch . 66, § 2; L. 

1987, ch . 63, § 2; L. 1989, ch. 57, § 2; L. 1990, ch. 68, § 4; L. 1991, ch. 54, § 4; L. 1992, ch. 198, § 6; L. 1992, ch . 279, § 

3; L. 1992, ch. 251, § 2; L. 1993, ch. 240, § 2; L. 1994, ch. 354, § 3; L. 1995, ch. 12, § 3; L. 1995, ch . 246, § 2; L. 1998, 

ch. 11, § 2; L. 1998, ch. 188, § 3; L. 1999, ch. 1, § 3; L. 2000, ch. 140, § 3; L. 2001, ch. 67, § 1; L. 2002, ch. 185, § 35; L. 

2003, ch. 147, § 33; L. 2005, ch. 47, § 2; L. 2005, ch . 186, § 3; L. 2005, ch . 186, § 4; L. 2006, ch. 9, § 2; L. 2006, ch . 

191, § 2; L. 2007, ch. 158, § 7; L. 2007, ch. 195, § 53; L. 2008, ch. 100, § 4; L. 2009, ch. I , § 2; L. 2010, ch. 3, § 2; L. 

2010, ch . 83, § 2; L. 2011, ch. 88, § 2; L. 2014, ch. 132, § 2; July 1. 

Revi sor's Note : 

Section was amended by L. 2005, ch. 119, § 2 and L. 2005, ch. 110, § 1, but those versions were repealed by L. 2005, ch. 186, §§ 22 and 23, respectively 
Sectio n not reconciled following amendment s by three bills durin g 2006 session, see also 12-189 f. 
Section was also amended by L. 2007 , ch. 153, § 2, but that version was repealed by L. 2007, ch . 195, § 59. 

16



25-2501. Definitions. As used in this act, the words and phrases set out in K.S.A. 25-2502 to 25-2507 shall 
have the meanings respectively ascribed to them unless the context requires a different meaning. 

History: L. 1968, ch. 406, § 1; April 30. 

17



25-2502. Same; dates of primary and general elections specified. (a) "General election" means the 
election held on the Tuesday succeeding the first Monday in November of even-numbered years, the elections held for 
officers on the first Tuesday in April. and in the case of special elections of any officers to fill vacancies, the election at 
which any such officer is finally elected. 

(b) "Primary election" means the election held on the first Tuesday in August of even-numbered years, the 
election held five weeks preceding the election on the first Tuesday in April, and any other preliminary election at which 
part of the candidates for special election to any national, state, county, township, city or school office are eliminated 
by the process of the election but at which no officer is finally elected. 

History: L. 1968, ch. 406, § 2; L. 1983, ch. 123, § 5; Jan. 27. 

18



25-2503. Same; national, state, county, city, school and township elections; question submitted 
election. (a) "National election" means the election of members of the United States house of representatives, 
members of the United States senate or members of the United States presidential electoral college. 

(b) "State election" means the election of state officers elected on a statewide basis, members of the house of 
representatives and state senators, members of the state board of education, district judges, district magistrate 
judges and district attorneys. 

(c) "County election" means the election of such county officers as are provided by law to be elected. 
(d) "City election" means the election of such city officers as are provided by law to be elected. 
(e) "School election" means the election of members of the governing body of a school district or a community 

college. 
(f) ''Township election" means the election of such township officers as are provided by law to be elected. 
(g) "Question submitted election" means any election at which a special question is to be voted on by the 

electors of the state or a part of them. 

History: L. 1968, ch. 406, § 3; L. 1970, ch. 143, § 1; L. 1976, ch. 181, § 9; L. 1986, ch. 115, § 77; Jan. 12, 1987. 

19



25-3601. Application to both state and local elections; determination of sufficiency of petitions; 
signatures; question to be submitted filed with county or district attorney prior to circulation; 
determination of legality of form; application of other statutes; copies of statutes to be provided. (a) 
Subject to the provisions of sUbsection (d), if a petition is required or authorized as a part of the procedure applicable 
to the state as a whole or any legislative election district or to any county, city, school district or other municipality, or 
part thereof, the provisions of K.S.A. 25-3601 et seq., and amendments thereto, shall apply. The sufficiency of each 
signature and the number thereof on any such petition shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of K.S .A. 
25-3601 to 25-3607, inclusive, and amendments thereto, by the county election officer or such other official as 
designated in the applicable statute. Except as provided herein, a copy of any petition requesting an election in any 
political or taxing subdivision of the state shall be submitted to the office of the county attorney of the county or 
district attomey of the district in which all or the greater portion of the political or taxing subdivision is located. If a 
county counselor has been appointed in the county or district, the petition shall be submitted to the county counselor. 
The petition shall be submitted either by hand-delivery or by certified mail, return receipt requested. Such petition 
shall contain the question to be submitted at the election. Within five business days following submission of the 
petition, the county counselor, county attorney or district attorney shall furnish a written advisory opinion as to the 
legality of the form of the question contained on the petition. There shall be a rebuttable presumption that the form of 
any question approved by the county counselor, county attorney or district attorney complies with the requirements of 
this act. If such opinion is not furnished within five days of submission of the question, the form of the question shall be 
deemed in compliance with the requirements of this act. 

If the advisory opinion states that the form of the question contained in the petition does not comply with the 
requirements of this act, such advisory opinion shall also state specific grounds to support such determination. 

Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as prohibiting the circulation of a petition for signatures or the filing 
of such petition with the county election officer prior to obtaining the advisory opinion required by this subsection. 

(b) Any person challenging the validity of the form of a question shall have the burden of proving in the district 
court that the form of the question is invalid. 

(c) The form of any question in a petition requesting an election on or protesting an ordinance, or resolution, 
adopted by the governing body of any county, city, school district or other municipality shall be presumed to be valid 
and in compliance with the requirements of K.S.A. 25-3601 et seq., and amendments thereto, if such petition states 
the title, number and exact language of the ordinance, or resolution, and the title of such petition states: 

"Shall the following ordinance, or resolution, become effective?" 
(d) When any other statute imposes specific requirements which are different from the requirements imposed by 

K.5A 25-3601 et seq., and amendments thereto, the provisions of the specific statute shall control. The county 
election officer or other official with whom the petition is required to be filed in accordance with the applicable statute 
shall give to persons requesting information regarding the filing of petitions a copy of K.S.A. 25-620 and article 36 of 
chapter 25 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto. 

(e) Any action challenging the validity of the form of a question in a petition shall be filed in the district court 
within 20 days after such petition has been filed with the county election officer. 

The court shall render an opinion in any action filed to challenge the validity of the form of a question in a petition 
within 20 days after the date such action is filed with the court. 

(f) The provisions of K.5.A. 25-3601 et seq., and amendments thereto, shall not apply to recall petitions as 
described in K.S.A. 25-4301 et seq., and amendments thereto. 

History: L. 1970, ch. 147, § 1; L. 1989, ch. 107, § 4; L. 1992, ch. 194, § 2; L. 2001, ch. 141, § 1; L. 2007, ch. 125, 
§ 3; July 1. 

20



s 

25-3602. Petition documents; where filed; successive filings; contents; verification; petition 
circulator; withdrawal of signature; void after 180 days; time of election; determination of number of 
signatures. (a) Each petition shall consist of one or more documents pertaining to a single issue or proposition 
under one distinctive title. The documents shall be filed with the county election officer or other official, if another 
official is designated in the applicable statutes. The filing shall be made at one time all in one group. Later or 
successive filings of documents relating to the same issue or proposition shall be deemed to be separate petitions 
and not a part of any earlier or later filing. 
(b) Unless otherwise specifically required, each petition shall: (1) State the question which petitioners seek to bring to 
an election in the form of a question as it should appear upon the ballot in accordance with the requirements of K.S.A. 
25-620 and K.5A 25-3601, and amendments thereto; 
(2) name the taxing subdivision or other political subdivision in which an election is sought to be held; 
(3) contain the following recital above the spaces provided for signatures: "I have personally signed this petition. I am 
a registered elector of the state of Kansas and of 

(here insert name of political or taxing subdivision) 
and my residence address is correctly written after my name." 
The recital shall be followed by blank spaces for the signature, residence address and date of signing for each person 
signing the petition. 
When petitioners are required by law to possess qualifications in addition to being registered electors, the form of the 
petition shall be amended to contain a recital specifying the additional qualifications required and stating that the 
petitioners possess the qualifications; and 
(4) contain a recital in substance as follows, at the end of each set of documents carried by each petition circulator 
as defined in K.5.A. 2014 Supp. 25-3608, and amendments thereto: "I am the circulator of this petition and I am 
qualified to circulate this petition and I personally witnessed the signing of the petition by each person whose name 
appears thereon. 

(Signature of circulator) 

(Circulator's residence address) 

The recital of the circulator of each petition shall be verified upon oath or affirmation before a notarial officer in the 
manner prescribed by K.5.A. 53-501 et seq., and amendments thereto. 
(c) Any person who has signed a petition who desires to withdraw such person's name may do so by giving written 
notice to the county election officer or other designated official not later than the third day following the date upon 
which the petition is filed. 
(d) Any petition shall be null and void unless submitted to the county election officer or other designated official 
within 180 days of the date of the first signature on the petition. 
(e) Unless the governing body of the political or taxing subdivision in which the election is sought to be held 
authorizes a special election, all elections which are called as a result of the filing of a sufficient petition shall be held at 
the next succeeding primary or general election as defined by K.S.A. 25-2502, and amendments thereto, in which the 
political or taxing subdivision is participating. 
(f) When a petition requires signatures equal in number to a percentage of the total number of registe red voters, 
such percentage shall be based on the most recent number of registered voters as certified to the office of the 
secretary of state pursuant to subsection (g) of K.S.A. 25-2311, and amendments thereto. 
History: L. 1970, ch. 147, § 2; L. 1976, ch. 190, § 1; L. 1983, ch. 126, § 2; L. 1986, ch. 141, § 1; L. 1990, ch. 129, § 2; 
L. 1992, ch. 194, § 3; L. 2001, ch. 141, § 2; L. 2001, ch. 211, § 8; L. 2014, ch. 98, § 5; May 15. 
Revisor's Note: 

Section was also amended by 1. 2001, ch. 128, § 7, but that version was repealed by L. 2001, ch. 211, § 18. 

21



EXCERPT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 


HELD ON MARCH 24, 2016 


The City Commission (the "Governing Body") of the City of Hays, Kansas (the "City") met in 
regular session at the usual meeting place in the City, at 6:30 p.m., the following members being present 
and participating, to-wit: 

Absent: 

The Mayor declared that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 

(Other Proceedings) 

Thereupon there was presented a Resolution entitled: 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE CALLING OF A 
SPECIAL QUESTION ELECTION IN THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY THE 
QUESTION OF IMPOSING A ONE-HALF PERCENT (1/2%) CITYWIDE 
RETAILERS' SALES TAX FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASSISTING UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 489, ELLIS COUNTY, KANSAS (HAYS) IN THE 
REPAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS TO BE ISSUED BY THE DISTRICT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR THE GIVING OF NOTICE OF SAID ELECTION. 

Thereupon Commissioner moved that said Resolution be adopted. The motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Said Resolution was duly read and considered, and 
upon being put, the motion for the adoption of said Resolution was carried by the vote of the governing 
body, the vote being as follows: 

Aye: 

Nay: 

Thereupon, a majority of the members of the governing body having voted in favor of the 
Resolution, it was declared duly adopted and was then duly numbered Resolution No. 2016-[_]; and was 
directed to be signed by the Mayor and attested by the Clerk. The Clerk was further directed to transmit a 
copy of said resolution to the County Clerk of Ellis County, Kansas, and to take all action necessary to 
proceed with calling said special question election in the manner prescribed by law. 

(Other Proceedings) 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

22



CERTIFICATE 


I hereby certifY that the foregoing Excerpt of Minutes is a true and correct excerpt of the 
proceedings of the governing body of the City of Hays, Kansas, held on the date stated therein, and that 
the official minutes of such proceedings are on file in my office. 

(SEAL) 
Clerk 

(Signature page to Excerpt of Minutes) 
23



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-[_] 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE CALLING OF A 
SPECIAL QUESTION ELECTION IN THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY THE 
QUESTION OF IMPOSING A ONE-HALF PERCENT (112%) CITYWIDE 
RETAILERS' SALES TAX FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASSISTING UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 489, ELLIS COUNTY, KANSAS (HAYS) IN THE 
REPAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS TO BE ISSUED BY THE DISTRICT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR THE GIVING OF NOTICE OF SAID ELECTION. 

WHEREAS, K.S.A. 12-187 et seq., as amended (the "Sales Tax Act"), authorizes the governing 
body (the "Governing Body") of the City of Hays, Kansas (the "City") to submit at its discretion, and 
requires the Governing Body to submit upon submission of a petition signed by electors of the City equal 
in number to not less than 10% of the electors of the City, the question of imposing Citywide retailers' 
sales taxes to the electors of the City, which in the aggregate may be in amounts not to exceed two 
percent (2%) for general purposes and not to exceed one percent (1 %) for special purposes, provided sales 
taxes for special purposes shall expire ten (10) years from the initial date of collection thereof; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Sales Tax Act, the electors of the City have previously approved 
propositions to authorize the levy of the following Citywide retailers' sales taxes: 

(a) 	 0.50% for general operations of the City, which tax commenced In 1982 and has no 
sunset; 

(b) 	 0.50% for development of new water sources, which tax commenced in 1992 and has no 
sunset; and 

(c) 	 0.75% for general operations of the City, which tax commenced in 2004 and has no 
sunset; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Sales Tax Act, a petition (the "Petition") requesting that the City 
submit the question of imposing an additional Citywide retailers' sales tax to assist Unified School 
District No. 489, Ellis County, Kansas (Hays) (the "District") in the repayment of the principal of and 
interest on not to exceed $94,035,000 principal amount of general obligation bonds to be issued by the 
District, if approved by the electors of the District (the "District Bonds"), was submitted to the county 
election officer for Ellis County, Kansas (the "County Clerk"), in accordance with K.S.A. 25-3601 et seq. 
(the "Petition Act"), and the County Clerk found the number of signers ofthe Petition sufficient; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby calls a special question ejection in the City on 
***[INSERT SELECTED ELECTION DATE]*** for the purpose of submitting to the qualified electors 
of the City the question of imposing a one-half percent (1/2%) Citywide retailers' sales tax ("Educational 
Sales Tax"), as requested by the Petition; and 

WHEREAS, if approved, the Educational Sales Tax will constitute a sales tax imposed for 
special purposes, as said term is described in K.S.A. 12-189, as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF HAYS, KANSAS: 

24



SECTION 1. Implementation of the Educational Sales Tax. In order to comply with the 
Sales Tax Act, the Petition Act, and the Petition, it is necessary and advisable to call an election pursuant 
to authority of the Sales Tax Act to impose the Educational Sales Tax. Collection of the Educational 
Sales Tax, if approved by the electors of the City, shall commence on the earlier of: (i) October 1,2018, 
or (ii) the termination of the Ellis County, Kansas, one-half percent (112%) retailer's sales tax approved 
by the electors on May 14,2013, or as soon thereafter as permitted by law, and shall expire ten (10) years 
after its commencement; provided further that the imposition of such Educational Sales Tax shall be 
subject to the following conditions: (i) approval by the electors of the City of the proposition authorizing 
the Educational Sales Tax; and (ii) approval by the electors of the District at an election to be held at the 
same time of a proposition authorizing the issuance of the District Bonds. 

SECTION 2. Special Question Election. It is hereby authorized, ordered and directed that a 
special question election shall be and is hereby called to be held in the City on ***[INSERT SELECTED 
ELECTION DATE]***, at which time there shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the City the 
following proposition: 

Shall the following be adopted? 

Shall the City of Hays, Kansas, be authorized, pursuant to the authority of K.S.A. 12 187 
et seq. , as amended, and K.S.A. 25-3601 et seq., as amended, to impose a one-half 
percent (112%) special purpose Citywide retailers' sales tax (the "Educational Sales 
Tax"), the revenues to be derived therefrom to be used for the purpose of assisting 
Unified School District No. 489, Ellis County, Kansas (Hays) (the "District") in the 
repayment of the principal of and interest on general obligation bonds to be issued by the 
District in an amount not to exceed $94,035,000 (the "District Bonds") to pay the costs 
to: (a) construct, furnish, and equip improvements, renovations and additions, including 
storm shelters, deferred maintenance and technology, to District facilities, including Hays 
High School, Hays Middle School, Lincoln Elementary School, O'Loughlin Elementary 
School, Roosevelt Elementary School, Wilson Elementary School and Early Childhood 
Connections - Washington Site (collectively, the "District Projects"); (b) make related 
infrastructure and all other necessary improvements appurtenant thereto; and (c) pay 
costs of issuance and interest on said general obligation bonds during construction of the 
District Projects; provided that the collection of the Educational Sales tax shall 
commence on the earlier of: (i) October 1, 2018, or (ii) the termination of the Ellis 
County, Kansas, one-half percent (112%) retailer's sales tax approved by the electors on 
May 14,2013, or as soon thereafter as permitted by law, and shall expire ten (10) years 
after its commencement; provided further that the imposition of such Educational Sales 
Tax shall be subject to the following conditions: (i) approval by the electors of the City 
of this proposition; and (ii) approval by the electors of the District at an election to be 
held at the same time of a proposition authorizing the issuance of the District Bonds? 

If the proposition set forth above is approved by the electors of the City, all proceeds of the 
Educational Sales Tax shall be applied for the purposes set forth therein. 

SECTION 3. Special Question Election Procedures. The vote at said special question 
election shall be by ballot, and the proposition stated above shall be printed on the ballots, together with 
voting instructions as provided by law. The Clerk shall transmit a copy of this Resolution to the County 
Clerk of Ellis County, Kansas, to give notice of the special question election as provided by law by 
publishing a Notice of Special Question Election in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A 
once each week for two (2) consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the City, with the 
first publication to be not less than twenty-one (21) days prior to the date of the special question election, 

2 

25



and the last publication shall be not more than forty-five (45) days prior to the date of the special question 
election. 

SECTION 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective from and after its adoption by 
the Governing Body. 

[BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

3 

26



ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Hays, Kansas, on 
March 24, 2016. 

(Seal) 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Clerk 

[APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY. 

City Attorney] 

CERTIFICATE 

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution 
No. 2016-__ of the City of Hays, Kansas, adopted by the governing body on March 24, 2016, as the 
same appears of record in my office. 

DATED: March 24, 2016. 

Clerk 

[BALANCE OF P AGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

(Signature page to Resolution) 
27



EXHIBITA 

(First published in the Hays Daily News on [ ], 2016, --------' 
and subsequently on [L-_____], 2016) 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL QUESTION ELECTION 

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 


Notice is hereby given to the qualified electors of the City of Hays, Kansas (the "City") that a 
special question election has been called and will be held on ***[INSERT SELECTED ELECTION 
DATE] ***, for the purpose of submitting to the qualified electors ofthe City the following proposition: 

Shall the following be adopted? 

Shall the City of Hays, Kansas, be authorized, pursuant to the authority ofK.S.A. 12 187 
et seq., as amended, and K.S.A. 25-3601 et seq., as amended, to impose a one-half 
percent (112%) special purpose Citywide retailers' sales tax (the "Educational Sales 
Tax"), the revenues to be derived therefrom to be used for the purpose of assisting 
Unified School District No. 489, Ellis County, Kansas (Hays) (the "District") in the 
repayment of the principal of and interest on general obligation bonds to be issued by the 
District in an amount not to exceed $94,035,000 (the "District Bonds") to pay the costs 
to: (a) construct, furnish, and equip improvements, renovations and additions, including 
storm shelters, deferred maintenance and technology, to District facilities, including Hays 
High School, Hays Middle School, Lincoln Elementary School, O'Loughlin Elementary 
School, Roosevelt Elementary School, Wilson Elementary School and Early Childhood 
Connections - Washington Site (collectively, the "District Projects"); (b) make related 
infrastructure and all other necessary improvements appurtenant thereto; and (c) pay 
costs of issuance and interest on said general obligation bonds during construction of the 
District Projects; provided that the collection of the Educational Sales tax shall 
commence on the earlier of: (i) October 1, 2018, or (ii) the termination of the Ellis 
County, Kansas, one-half percent (1/2%) retailer's sales tax approved by the electors on 
May 14,2013, or as soon thereafter as permitted by law, and shall expire ten (10) years 
after its commencement; provided further that the imposition of such Educational Sales 
Tax shall be subject to the following conditions: (i) approval by the electors of the City 
of this proposition; and (ii) approval by the electors of the District at an election to be 
held at the same time of a proposition authorizing the issuance of the District Bonds? 

********************** 

IT IS IMPORT ANT FOR EACH QUALIFIED VOTER TO NOTE THAT YOUR BALLOT CANNOT 
BE COUNTED UNLESS YOU TAKE THE APPROPRIATE STEPS: 

To vote in favor of any question submitted on this ballot, completely darken the oval to the left of 
the word "YES" on the paper ballot. To vote against it, completely darken the oval to the left of the word 
"NO" on the paper ballot. 

o YES 

o NO 

********************** 


A-I 

28



The polls will open at 7:00 A.M. and will close at 7:00 P.M., on ***[INSERT SELECTED 
ELECTION DATE]***, the election day. The voting places in the City and the area each voting place 
will be as follows: 

The election will be conducted by the officers and/or persons provided by law for holding 
elections, and the method of voting will be by ballot. Registered voters are eligible to vote by advance 
voting ballot upon application to the County Clerk of Ellis County, Kansas, set forth below pursuant to 
K.S.A. 25-1117 et seq. 

********************** 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

The following additional information is provided by the City with respect to the effect of this 
ballot proposition. Passage of this ballot proposition would authorize the City to impose a one-half 
percent (1/2%) special purpose Citywide retailers' sales tax (the "Educational Sales Tax"), the revenues 
to be derived therefrom to be used for the purpose of assisting Unified School District No. 489, Ellis 
County, Kansas (Hays) (the "District") in the repayment of the principal of and interest on general 
obligation bonds to be issued by the District in an amount not to exceed $94,035,000 (the "District 
Bonds") to pay the costs to: (a) construct, furnish, and equip improvements, renovations and additions, 
including storm shelters, deferred maintenance and technology, to District facilities, including Hays High 
School, Hays Middle School, Lincoln Elementary School, O'Loughlin Elementary School, Roosevelt 
Elementary School, Wilson Elementary School and Early Childhood Connections - Washington Site 
(collectively, the "District Projects"); (b) make related infrastructure and all other necessary 
improvements appurtenant thereto; and ( c) pay costs of issuance and interest on said general obligation 
bonds during construction of the District Projects; provided that the collection of the Educational Sales 
tax shall commence on the earlier of: (i) October 1, 2018, or (ii) the termination of the Ellis County, 
Kansas, one-half percent (112%) retailer's sales tax approved by the electors on May 14,2013, or as soon 
thereafter as permitted by law, and shall expire ten (10) years after its commencement; provided further 
that the imposition of such Educational Sales Tax shall be subject to the following conditions: (i) 
approval by the electors of the City of this proposition; and (ii) approval by the electors of the District at 
an election to be held at the same time of a proposition authorizing the issuance of the District Bonds. 

********************** 

ELECTION INFORMATION 

The election officer conducting the election will be the County Clerk of Ellis County, Kansas, 
whose address is: Ellis County Courthouse, 1204 Fort Street, Hays, Kansas 67601. 

DATED: March 24, 2016. 
Donna J. Maskus, County Clerk 
Ellis County, Kansas 

A-2 

29



BALLOT CERTIFICATE 


STATE OF KANSAS ) 
) ss: 

COUNTY OF ELLIS ) 

I, the undersigned County Clerk of Ellis County, Kansas, do hereby certify that attached below is 
a true and correct copy of the ballot label used at the special question election held on ***[INSERT 
SELECTED ELECTION DATE]***, in the City of Hays, Kansas, on the proposition set forth in the 
ballot; and that the judges and clerks duly qualified by taking their respective oaths before assuming their 
duties at the election. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal on ***[INSERT SELECTED ELECTION DATE]***. 

(SEAL) 	 Donna 1. Maskus, County Clerk 
Ellis County, Kansas 

[Affix copy of ballot label] 

30



STATE OF KANSAS 

OFFICIAL BALLOT 


THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 


***[INSERT SELECTED ELECTION DATE]*** 


NOTICE 


If you deface or make a mistake and wrongfully mark any ballot, you must return it to the 
election board and receive a new ballot. 

TO VOTE IN FAVOR OF ANY QUESTION SUBMITTED ON THIS BALLOT, COMPLETELY 
DARKEN THE OVAL TO THE LEFT OF THE WORD "YES" ON THE PAPER BALLOT. TO VOTE 
AGAINST IT, COMPLETELY DARKEN THE OVAL TO THE LEFT OF THE WORD "NO" ON THE 
PAPER BALLOT. 

SHALL THE FOLLOWING BE ADOPTED? 

SHALL THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, BE AUTHORIZED, PURSUANT TO THE 
AUTHORITY OF KS.A. 12 187 ET SEQ., AS AMENDED, AND KS.A. 25-3601 ET 
SEQ., AS AMENDED, TO IMPOSE A ONE-HALF PERCENT (1/2%) SPECIAL 
PURPOSE CITYWIDE RETAILERS' SALES TAX (THE "EDUCATIONAL SALES 
TAX"), THE REVENUES TO BE DERIVED THEREFROM TO BE USED FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF ASSISTING UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 489, ELLIS 
COUNTY, KANSAS (HAYS) (THE "DISTRICT") IN THE REP A YMENT OF THE 
PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON GENERAL OBLIGA nON BONDS TO BE 
ISSUED BY THE DISTRICT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $94,035,000 (THE 
"DISTRICT BONDS") TO PAY THE COSTS TO: (A) CONSTRUCT, FURNISH, 
AND EQUIP IMPROVEMENTS, RENOVATIONS AND ADDITIONS, INCLUDING 
STORM SHELTERS, DEFERRED MAINTENANCE AND TECHNOLOGY, TO 
DISTRICT FACILITIES, INCLUDING HAYS HIGH SCHOOL, HAYS MIDDLE 
SCHOOL, LINCOLN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, O'LOUGHLIN ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL, ROOSEVELT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, WILSON ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL AND EARLY CHILDHOOD CONNECTIONS - WASHINGTON SITE 
(COLLECTIVELY, THE "DISTRICT PROJECTS"); (B) MAKE RELA TED 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND ALL OTHER NECESSARY IMPROVEMENTS 
APPURTENANT THERETO; AND (C) PAY COSTS OF ISSUANCE AND INTEREST 
ON SAID GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS DURING CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
DISTRICT PROJECTS; PROVIDED THA T THE COLLECTION OF THE 
EDUCATIONAL SALES TAX SHALL COMMENCE ON THE EARLIER OF: (I) 
OCTOBER 1, 2018, OR (II) THE TERMINATION OF THE ELLIS COUNTY, 
KANSAS, ONE-HALF PERCENT (1/2%) RETAILER'S SALES TAX APPROVED BY 
THE ELECTORS ON MAY 14,2013, OR AS SOON THEREAFTER AS PERMITTED 
BY LAW, AND SHALL EXPIRE TEN (10) YEARS AFTER ITS COMMENCEMENT; 

31



PROVIDED FURTHER THAT THE IMPOSITION OF SUCH EDUCATIONAL 
SALES TAX SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: (1) 
APPROVAL BY THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF THIS PROPOSITION; AND (II) 
APPROV AL BY THE ELECTORS OF THE DISTRICT AT AN ELECTION TO BE 
HELD AT THE SAME TIME OF A PROPOSITION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE 
OF THE DISTRICT BONDS? 

o YES 

o NO 

32



STATE OF KANSAS 

OFFICIAL BALLOT 


CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 


QUESTION SUBMITTED 


SPECIAL QUESTION ELECTION 

***[INSERT SELECTED ELECTION DATE]*** 

CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 

33



 

 

CERTIFICATION OF CANVASS OF VOTES 
 
STATE OF KANSAS  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF Ellis  ) 
 
 I, the undersigned County Clerk of Ellis County, Kansas, do hereby certify that the following are 
the true and correct results according to the abstract of votes cast at the special question election held on 
***[INSERT SELECTED ELECTION DATE]***, in the City of Hays, Kansas, on the following 
proposition: 
 

Shall the following be adopted? 
 

Shall the City of Hays, Kansas, be authorized, pursuant to the authority of K.S.A. 12 187 
et seq., as amended, and K.S.A. 25-3601 et seq., as amended, to impose a one-half 
percent (1/2%) special purpose Citywide retailers’ sales tax (the “Educational Sales 
Tax”), the revenues to be derived therefrom to be used for the purpose of assisting 
Unified School District No. 489, Ellis County, Kansas (Hays) (the “District”) in the 
repayment of the principal of and interest on general obligation bonds to be issued by the 
District in an amount not to exceed $94,035,000 (the “District Bonds”) to pay the costs 
to:  (a) construct, furnish, and equip improvements, renovations and additions, including 
storm shelters, deferred maintenance and technology, to District facilities, including Hays 
High School, Hays Middle School, Lincoln Elementary School, O’Loughlin Elementary 
School, Roosevelt Elementary School, Wilson Elementary School and Early Childhood 
Connections – Washington Site (collectively, the “District Projects”); (b) make related 
infrastructure and all other necessary improvements appurtenant thereto; and (c) pay 
costs of issuance and interest on said general obligation bonds during construction of the 
District Projects; provided that the collection of the Educational Sales tax shall 
commence on the earlier of:  (i) October 1, 2018, or (ii) the termination of the Ellis 
County, Kansas, one-half percent (1/2%) retailer’s sales tax approved by the electors on 
May 14, 2013, or as soon thereafter as permitted by law, and shall expire ten (10) years 
after its commencement; provided further that the imposition of such Educational Sales 
Tax shall be subject to the following conditions:  (i) approval by the electors of the City 
of this proposition; and (ii) approval by the electors of the District at an election to be 
held at the same time of a proposition authorizing the issuance of the District Bonds? 

 
 Such results are shown by the returns of said election which are on file in the Office of the 
County Clerk and canvassed as provided by law: 
 

Yes  --------------------------------------------------------  __________ 
  
No  ---------------------------------------------------------  __________ 
  
Void  ------------------------------------------------------  __________ 
  
Total Vote  -----------------------------------------------  __________ 

 
 WITNESS my hand and official seal on [_______________], 2016. 
 
 
(Seal)              
       Donna J. Maskus, County Clerk 
       Ellis County, Kansas 

34



MAR - 9 2016 
'(c-c: kwell A,ckninisl roticn C e nt erwang Uni fjf3 d Sc hc)o! Distr ic t /HY? 

ether 
Hays, KansClS 676QI ·3EFJ3 

TEL (785) 62,3 2400USC 489 FAX (785)623-2 409 
V'/'N\V .uscJ489 .com 

March 9, 2016 

Dear Hays City Commissioners, 

USD 489 volunteers collected 1,629 signatures in support of a half-cent sales tax 
petition. Those signatures were turned into the County Clerk's office on 
Monday, February 29th and were canvased by the County Clerk's staff. The 
clerk's office has verified that the district has collected enough signatures to 
validate the half-cent sales tax petition. 

The Board of Education and petition volunteers are now seeking assistance from 
the Hays City Commission to allow a half-cent sales tax question to accompany 
the $94,035,000 bond issue on the June 7th election ballot. USD 489 realizes 
there are costs associated with having a sales tax question on the election ballot. 
The district will pay for any and all costs associated with putting the half-cent 
sales tax question on a ballot. The board will make a motion to pay for all sales 
tax question costs associated with the election at the next regularly scheduled 
board meeting on March 21,2016. 

The Board of Education will adopt a resolution calling for a bond issue to not 
exceed $94,035,000 at the March 21 st board meeting. If a sales tax question 
accompanies the bond issue question on the ballot, the type of election would be 
walk-in. If only one question is asked, the district will use a mail-in ballot. In 
order to know which style of election to adopt during the resolution, the board is 
asking for your intent on allowing the half-cent sales tax question to be put on the 
same banot for june 7, 2016 election. Your feedback will ensure the board has 
the correct material prepared for approval at our upcoming board meeting. 

Thank you for the opportunity to address the commission and for any feedback 
you can provide regarding the matter. 

Sincerely, ._'_'" 

)C·=·:>bYA ____. .._._..~~_ .. C ,)-s::r, ~ 
c·: .... ''' , ( j)" \::) 

Lance Bickle -~ 
USD 489 Board of Education President 

, - __· _· · · __• ____• _ __~ __ ~_.. ·· ~, .. • .. • .... h •••••• _•••_...... ............ ........ , . .._"' • . ~_ ...... • ."'''•• 


r"n t'-l '..lol OPPO!!Ur\lty EmploYSi 35



107 W 121h Telephone (785) 628-9405 
Hays, Kansas 67601 Fax (785) 628-9409 

Ellis County Attorney 
Thomas J. Drees 

Ellis County Attorney 

Charlene Brubaker Brenda L. Basgall Crystalyn M Oswald Christopher Lyon 
Ass!' County Attorney Ass!' County Attorney Ass!' County Attorney Ass!' County Attorney 

February 4,2016 

William Jeter 
USD 489 School Board Attorney 
Hays, KS 67601 
(Hand Delivered) 

Re: USD 489 Sales Tax Petition ..... Advisory Opinion of Legality 

Dear Bill: 

I am in receipt of your proposed petition for election of a 12 cent city wide sales tax for USD 489 
Facilities. (See attached). You submitted the petition to me on Wednesday, February 3, 2016, for 
approval pursuant to K.S.A. 25-3601 et. seq., K.S.A. 12-187 et. seq., and K.S.A. 25-601 et. seq. 

In accordance with K.S.A. 25-3601 (a), I hereby provide you with this written advisory opinion that the 
petition, the questioned contained therein, the statement of the petition signer, and the format of the 
affidavit of petition circulator are in compliance with appropriate Kansas Statutes, are legal, and comply 
with the requirements necessary to circulate the petition. 

Bill, I do note that there appears to be a contlict in the statutory law as K.S.A. 25-3601(c) states that the 
petition shall start with "shall the following ordinance or resolution become effective?" and K.S.A . 25
620 states that the proposition or question shall be proceeded by the words "shall the following be 
adopted?". These appear to contradict one another. However, K.S.A. 25-360 1 (d) states that when 
another statute imposes specific requirements different from the requirements imposed by K.S.A. 25
3601, the provisions of the specific statute shall control. Because you are petitioning a question to be 
placed on a ballot to be voted by the electors of the city of Hays, I conclude K.S.A. 25-620 to be the more 
specific statute and the wording "shall the following be adopted?" is appropriate. 

Thank you for hand delivering the proposed petition to me. I will extend the courtesy of hand delivering 
this written advisory opinion as to the legality of the form of the question and petition back to you. 

If you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact me. 

SiL:3 
Thomas J Drees 
Ellis County Attorney 
Sp. Ct. No. 14176 

Attachment 

36



/PETITION FOR EL~CTI~N OF CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS TO ~OSE A ONE-HALF PERCENT (1J2~) CITY-WIDE RETAILERS' 
ISPECIAL PURPOSE SALES TAX TO CONSTRUCT, FURNISH AND EQUIP IMPROVEl.\1ENTS, RENOVATIONS AND ADDITIONS TO 
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTIUCT NO. 489 FACILITIES 

SHALL THE FOLLOWING BE ADOPTED? Shall the City of Hays, Kansas, be authorized, pursuant to the authority of K.S.A. 12-187 et seq., 
as amended, and K.S.A. 25-3601 et seq., as amended, to impose a one-half percent (112%) special purpose Citywide retailers' sales tax (the 
"Educational Sales Tax"), the revenues to be derived therefrom to be used for the purpose of assisting Unified School District No. 489, Ellis 
County, Kansas (Hays) (the ''District'') in the repayment of the principal of and interest on general obligation bonds to be issued by the District 
in an amount not to exceed $94,035,000 (the ''District Bonds") to pay the costs to: (a) construct, furnish, and equip improvements, renovations 
and additions, including storm shelters, deferred maintenance and technology, to District facilities, including Hays High School, Hays Middle 
School, Lincoln Elementary School, O'Loughlin Elementary School, Roosevelt Elementary School, Wilson Elementary School and Early 
Childhood Connections - Washington Site (collectively, the ''District Projects"); (b) make related infrastructure and all other necessary 
improvements appurtenant thereto; and (c) pay costs of issuance and interest on said general obligation bonds during construction of the 
District Projects; provided that the collection of the Educational Sales tax shall commence on the earlier of: (i) October 1, 2018, or (ii) the 
termination of the Ellis County, Kansas, one-half percent (112%) retailer's sales tax approved by the electors on May 14,2013, (renovation of 
Ellis County facilities: Jail, Courthouse and Emergency Services) or as soon thereafter as permitted by law, and shall expire ten (10) years after 
its commencement; provided further that the imposition of sucb Educational Sales Tax shall be subject to tbe following conditions: (i) 
approval by the electors of the City of this proposition; and (ii) approval by the electors of the District at an election to be held at the same time 
of a proposition authorizing the issuance of the District Bonds? 

By signing this petition, I am requesting that the question noted above, be submitted to the electors of the City of Hays, Kansas, at an election 
called and held thereon. 

I have personally signed this petition. I am a registered elector of the State of Kansas and of the City of Hays, Kansas and my residence 
address is correctly written after my name.------...--- ] ....-...- ...- ......-....... ._-,-_.-._...__.._........... .. ..... ... . ··--·-------'1'.,-,--.----.~ 

Signature of Signer Name of Signer (Print) Residence Address (as registered) Date 
. ...• .---- - - . .... ...--.... ..- ._.._ ....__.. .. .... _,- ,..__ .. , -- , i ""-,,,,,----

it-~ -=~---=~---- 1 - - ~~--- ~--i--=_ -=== - I -------I 

-~ + --=f--- --- ,··..- -·r· ..- - _____ 

~. - _ _ +-- ===L~~: ---- -___..-.------ ,~==____ 
~ ------ - - -,-- +--- - _._- I --~-·· 

r . . . _L ' 37



AFFIDAVIT OF PETITION CIRCULATOR 


I am the circulator of this Petition, a resident of the State of Kansas and possess the 
qualifications of an elector of the State of Kansas. I have personally witnessed the signing of 
this Petition by each person whose name appears thereon. 

Signature of Circulator 

Circulator's Residence Address 

VERIFICATION 

STATE OF KANSAS, COUNTY OF ELLIS, ss: 

________________ being first duly sworn on her/her oath, states and 


avers as follows: 


That he/she is the Circulator above named; that he/she has read the above and foregoing and 

knows the same is true and correct. 


Signature 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this __ day of 
______--', 2016. 

Notary Public 

Appointment 

38



 

 

Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works  
 
Work Session:   March 17, 2016  
 
Subject:  Airport Snow Broom Acquisition  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Greg Sund, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
The 2016 budget included funds for the purchase of snow removal equipment at the Hays 
Regional Airport.  A snow broom is eligible for FAA Airport Improvement Program 
funding, which covers 90% of eligible costs.  FAA requires actual bids prior to awarding 
a grant to cover the costs.  Bids were received on March 1, 2016, and the total cost of the 
snow broom including administration and acquisition is $173,354, with the City’s share 
being $17,336.  The City’s Airport Engineer, Burns & McDonnell, has prepared a grant 
application to be submitted to FAA to fund 90% of the cost of the snow broom.  Staff 
requests authorization to apply for federal assistance in paying for the snow broom, and 
acceptance of the bid from M-B Companies, Inc. contingent on FAA grant funding. 
  

Background  
At the December 3, 2015 Work Session staff presented the proposed procurement of the 
snow broom to the City Commission and explained how FAA’s changing requirements 
regarding eligible snow removal equipment had changed and why the 2016 CIP listed a 
truck with rotary broom and the piece of equipment bid is a tow broom. 
 

Discussion 
The City’s Airport Engineer, Burns & McDonnell (BMcD), prepared bid documents for 
the snow broom and a grant application to be submitted to FAA to fund 90% of the 
eligible costs of the snow broom.  A work authorization with BMcD was approved in 
December 2015. 
 
FAA requires actual bids prior to awarding grant money for these types of acquisitions; 
therefore, bids were received on March 1st; however, there was only one bidder, and that 
bid was from M-B Companies, Inc. of Chilton, WI at a price of $157,524, which is below 
the engineer’s estimate of $175,000.  Delivery would be within 240 calendar days of the 
Notice to Proceed.  
 
Award of bid would be contingent upon FAA awarding a grant to fund 90% of the 
eligible cost. 
 

39



Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by staff. 

Financial Consideration 
The 2016 Budget included $17,000 from the New Equipment Reserve Fund to cover the 
City’s share of this acquisition.  Including administration/engineering and acquisition, the 
total cost of the project is $173,354, with the City’s share being $17,336, which is 
slightly over the budgeted amount of $17,000.  This expected overage was discussed at 
the December 3, 2015 Work Session.   The New Equipment Reserve has adequate funds 
to cover the local share, which would be reimbursed to the fund through the annual 
transfer from the Airport Budget.   

The detailed breakout of costs included in the grant application is listed below: 

Administration  $2,000 
Engineering  $13,830 
Equipment (Snow Broom) $157,524 
Total  $173,354 

FAA Reimbursement (90% of eligible) $156,018 
City Share (10% of eligible) $17,336 

Options
The City Commission has the following options: 

 Consider authorizing staff to submit an application for federal assistance for the
purchase of a snow broom for the Hays Regional Airport, and accept the low bid
from M-B Companies, Inc. contingent upon FAA grant approval.

 Provide alternate direction to City Staff.

Recommendation 
Staff recommends authorizing the submission of an application for federal assistance for 
the purchase of a snow broom for the Hays Regional Airport and accepting the bid from 
M-B contingent upon FAA grant funding.

Action Requested 
Consider authorizing staff to submit an application for federal assistance for the purchase 
of a snow broom for the Hays Regional Airport, and accept the low bid from M-B 
Companies, Inc. contingent upon an FAA grant offer.  All costs to be funded from the 
New Equipment Reserve Fund. 

Supporting Documentation 
Engineer’s Recommendation 
Bid Proposal from M-B 
FAA Grant Application 

40



March 4, 2016 

 

Mr. Greg Sund 

Director of Public Works 

City of Hays 

1002 Vine Street  

Hays, Kansas 67601 

 

Re: Engineer’s Recommendation for the Procure Snow Removal Equipment at Hays Regional Airport 

AIP No. 3-20-0028-33 

BMcD No. 89419 

 

Dear Mr. Sund: 

 

Burns & McDonnell has tabulated and confirmed the bid received for the aforementioned project and 

dated March 1, 2016.  The tabulation summary of bids is provided in Table A.  A detailed tabulation of 

bid is enclosed for your review. 

TABLE A 

ENGINEER’S EVALUATION OF  

SNOW REMOVAL EQUIPMENT (RUNWAY BROOM) BIDS 

Type of Bid Burns & McDonnell M-B Companies, Inc. 

Base Bid $190,000.00 $157,524.00 

 

The Bidder provided documentation for the items noted below. A copy of each item is attached herein. 

 

1. Contractor’s Statement of Qualifications  

2. Manufacturing details  

3. Signed Acknowledgement of Addendum No. 1 

4. Signed Proposal Form 

5. Signed Buy American Certification (selected Type 3 waiver, included component table) 

6. Signed DBE Utilization Statement and Letter of Intent with Good Faith Effort documents 

7. Bid Bond (5%) 

 

There were no mathematical errors on the submitted proposal forms. Based on the bid tabulations, the 

apparent low bidder for the runway broom is M-B Companies. 

 

The Disadvantage Business Enterprise (DBE), goal for the equipment acquisition is 0.0%. M-B’s 

proposed value of DBE participation is 0.0% of the Base Bid. The amount proposed does meet the target 

goal. 

 
There was one bid received for this equipment procurement. Burns & McDonnell completed a single bid 

analysis in accordance with AIP Sponsor Guide – 1010 (Single Bids). On March 4, 2016, a telephone 

interview was conducted with Wausau Everest’s Mr. Chuck Reichwald. The purpose of the call was to 

confirm the planholder’s understanding of the equipment, inquire why Wausau did not submit a bid, and 

41



determine if the specifications could not be met by their equipment. Mr. Reichwald indicated there were 

no misunderstandings in the specifications regarding the runway broom and that the specifications could 

be met under normal circumstances. However, at this time, Wausau’s engine for the specified broom is 

not available. It is undergoing a transition to meet the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Tier 4 

Engine Emission Requirements and will not be available for purchase until next year. Mr. Reichwald also 

indicated that a proposal price of approximately $157,600 is ‘fair and reasonable’ for the specified 

runway broom. Additionally, Burns & McDonnell has completed review of the project manual and 

determined the specifications did not exclude any potential bidders for this equipment. Based on the 

engineer’s estimate, bid received, and the phone conversation with Mr. Reichwald, it is confirmed that the 

proposed bid cost from M-B companies is fair and reasonable. A cost evaluation is attached for reference.   

 

Burns & McDonnell also conducted a phone interview with Mr. Steve Mueller of M-B Companies. The 

purpose of the call was to reaffirm the Bidder’s understanding of the equipment and clarify any 

outstanding items or concerns of the apparent low bidder. The topics of discussion included the 

following: 

 

1. Discussion of insurance requirements. The Contractor confirmed their company will have 

no issues meeting the contract amounts. 

2. Schedule and delivery of equipment. There are no issues with the manufacturer meeting the 

proposed contract time.  

3. Qualifications of proposed equipment. There are no proposed qualifications by the 

manufacturer for the equipment. 

4. Items of Concerns as Stated by the Contractor: The Contractor indicates there are no 

questions or concerns regarding their bid as submitted. 

 

Based on the results of the tabulation of bids, review of the bid documentation, the single bid analysis, 

and discussions with the Apparent Low Bidder, Burns & McDonnell recommends the following awards 

in Table B subject to available funding. 

 

  

42



TABLE B 

SUMMARY OF ENGINEER’S VEHICLE 

RECOMMENDATION 

Bid Type Award M-B Companies, Inc. 

Base Bid $157,524.00 

 

 

I trust this information is sufficient for your purposes. If there are any additional questions or comments 

regarding this information, please contact me at 816-448-7444. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Raymond J. Ryan, P.E. 
Civil Engineer 

 
cc: Dan Wilson (FAA Central Region), Dave Hadel (Burns & McDonnell) 

Enclosures: Bid Tabulation, Single Bid Analysis Cost Comparison, M-B Companies’ Bid Documents 

43



ITEM 

NO.
DESCRIPTION OF WORK UNITS

ESTIMATED 

QUANTITY
UNIT COST TOTAL COST UNIT COST TOTAL COST

1 Snow Removal Equipment - Airport Runway Broom (12-foot) EA 1.00 $190,000.00 $190,000.00 $157,524.00 $157,524.00

Bid Read $157,524.00

$190,000.00 Tabulated $157,524.00

AIP No. 3-20-0028-33

BASE BID

HAYS, KS

HAYS REGIONAL AIRPORT

PROCURE SNOW REMOVAL EQUIPMENT BID TABULATION

March 4, 2016

Burns & McDonnell No. 89419

TOTAL COST OF BASE BID    

M-B Companies, Inc.Burns & McDonnell

44



ITEM 

NO.
DESCRIPTION OF WORK UNITS

ESTIMATED 

QUANTITY
UNIT COST TOTAL COST UNIT COST TOTAL COST

UNIT COST 

(M-B - BMcD)

TOTAL COST 

(M-B - BMcD)

1 Snow Removal Equipment - Airport Runway Broom (12-foot) EA 1 $190,000.00 $190,000.00 $157,524.00 $157,524.00 ($32,476.00) ($32,476.00)

Bid Read $157,524.00

$190,000.00 Tabulated $157,524.00 TOTAL DELTA ($32,476.00)

NOTES:

1. During a phone conversation with Mr. Chuck Reichwald of Wausau Everest Co., Inc., it was determined that an approximate cost of $157,600 was fair and reasonable for this equipment. 

PROJECT NO: 3-20-0028-33

Burns & McDonnell No. 89419

Bid Date: March 1, 2016

DIFFERENCE IN BMcD AND M-B 

UNIT AND TOTAL COSTS 
M-B Companies, Inc.Burns & McDonnell (BMcD)

TOTAL COST OF BASE BID

SINGLE BID ANALYSIS

HAYS REGIONAL AIRPORT

HAYS, KANSAS

PROCURE SNOW REMOVAL EQUIPMENT BID TABULATION

BASE BID

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 
OMB Number: 4040-0004 

Expiration Date: 08/31/2016 

 

                                                                              

  
  

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424  
* 1. Type of Submission

Preapplication 
  

  Application 
  

 

        
  

                          
  

     

      
  

                               
                          

                                                                
 

      
  

      
  

       

          
 

            

         
          

 
     

         
          

                                                                                   

     

      
  
  

      

                                                                     
      
    

   
 
      

      
  
  
  
  

                                                                  
      

  
  
  

 

  Changed/Corrected Application

* 2. Type of Application  

New 

Continuation 

Revision    

* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):

* Other (Specify)

* 3. Date Received: 4. Application Identifier:

5a. Federal Entity Identifier: * 5b. Federal Award Identifier:

State Use Only: 
6. Date Received by State:          7. State Application Identifier:
8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:
* a. Legal Name: 
* b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): *c. Organizational DUNS: 

d. Address:
* Street1:

Street 2:
* City:      
County:   

* State:  
Province:
 Country:  *Zip/ Postal Code:
e. Organizational Unit:
Department Name: Division Name: 

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application: 
  Prefix:        First Name:   
  Middle Name:  
* Last   Name:   
  Suffix:     
 Title:  

 Organizational Affiliation: 

* Telephone Number: Fax  Number: 
* Email:

80

■

■

- Select One -

HYS

3-20-0028-33

City of Hays, Kansas

48-6011465 039 929 120

City Hall

1507 Main Street P.O. Box 490

Hays
Ellis
Kansas

USA 67601

Airport

Mr. Greg

Sund

Director of Public Works

(785) 628-7350 (785) 628-7352

gsund@haysusa.com



  

                                                                                

      
  

      
  

      
  

      

      

  

      

      
  
  
   

 
      

  
  
  

      
  
  
  
  
  

      
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

OMB Number: 4040-0004 
Expiration Date: 08/31/2016 

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 
*9.Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type: 

Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type: 

Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type: 

* Other (specify):

* 10. Name of Federal Agency: 

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:
  20.106      
CFDA Title: 
  Airport Improvement Program
      

*12. Funding Opportunity Number:

Title:  

13. Competition Identification Number:

Title: 
      

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):

* 15.  Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project: 

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.  

81

C. City or Township Government

 - Select One -

 - Select One -

Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)

City of Hays, Kansas at the Hays Regional Airport

Procure Snow Removal Equipment. Hays Regional Airport has approximately 894,600 square feet of critical snow removal area. This 
includes the primary runway, parallel taxiway, general aviation apron, and fire rescue/emergency routes. The Airport is required to remove 
snowfall from these primary areas within 1 hour for aircraft operations. According to the FAA Snow Removal Equipment worksheet, the 
Airport is required to have this equipment. The procurement of a new 12-foot runway broom will bring the Airport into compliance with this 
requirement and make the facilities safer for all users during snowfall events. 



OMB Number:  4040-0004 

Expiration Date:  08/31/2016 

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

16. Congressional Districts Of: 

*a. Applicant:       *b. Program/Project:       

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed. 
      

17. Proposed Project: 

*a. Start Date:       *b. End Date:       

18. Estimated Funding ($): 

*a.  Federal 

*b. Applicant 

*c. State 

*d. Local 

*e. Other 

*f. Program Income 

       

      

      

      

      

      

*g. TOTAL       
 

 

 

*19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process? 

    

 

 

             

       

       

       

  

  

      

      

  

  a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on    

 b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review. 

  c. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372 

*20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt? (If “Yes”, provide explanation on next page.) 

  Yes   No 

21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements 
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply 
with any resulting terms if I accept an award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject me 
to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001) 

  ** I AGREE 

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or 
agency specific instructions. 

Authorized Representative: 

Prefix: *First Name:   

Middle Name: 

*Last Name: 

Suffix: 

*Title:     

*Telephone Number:     Fax Number:       

* Email: 

*Signature of Authorized Representative:  *Date Signed: 

82

KS-001 KS-001

01/11/2016 01/31/2016

156,018.00

17,336.00

173,354.00

■

■

✔

Mr. Greg

Sund

Director of Public Works

(785) 628-7350 (785) 628-7352

gsund@haysusa.com



  

                                                                            Application for Federal Assistance SF-424    
*Applicant Federal Debt Delinquency  Explanation
  

  The following field should contain an explanation if the Applicant organization is delinquent on any Federal Debt. Maximum 
number of characters that can be entered is 4,000. Try  and avoid extra spaces and carriage returns to maximize the availability of 
space. 
  
      
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

OMB Number: 4040-0004 
Expiration Date: 08/31/2016

83



U.S. Department of Transportation 
Federal Aviation Administration 

OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569 
EXPIRATION DATE: 4/30/2017 

Application for Federal Assistance (Development Projects) 

PART II – PROJECT APPROVAL INFORMATION 

SECTION A 

Item 1. 
Does this assistance request require State, local, regional, 
or other priority rating? 

 Yes  No 

Name of Governing Body: 

Priority: 

Item 2. 
Does this assistance request require State, or local
advisory, educational or health clearances? 

 

 Yes  No 

Name of Agency or Board: 

(Attach Documentation) 

Item 3. 
Does this assistance request require clearinghouse review 
in accordance with OMB Circular A-95? 

 Yes No 
(Attach Comments) 

Item 4.  
Does this assistance request require State, local, regional, 
or other planning approval? 

 Yes  No 

Name of Approving Agency: 

Date: 

Item 5. 
Is the proposal project covered by an approved 
comprehensive plan? 

 Yes  No 

Check one: State 
Local 
Regional 

Location of Plan: 

Item 6.  
Will the assistance requested serve a Federal installation? 

 Yes  No 

Name of Federal Installation: 

Federal Population benefiting from Project: 

Item 7.  
Will the assistance requested be on Federal land or 
installation? 

 Yes  No 

Name of Federal Installation: 

Location of Federal Land: 

Percent of Project: %
Item 8.  
Will the assistance requested have an impact or effect on 
the environment? 

 Yes  No 
(See instructions for additional information to be provided.) 

Item 9. 
Will the assistance requested cause the displacement of 
individuals, families, businesses, or farms? 

 Yes  No 

Number of: 
Individuals: 
Families: 
Businesses: 
Farms: 

Item 10. 
Is there other related Federal assistance on this project 
previous, pending, or anticipated? 

 Yes  No 
(See instructions for additional information to be provided.) 

FAA Form 5100-100 (5/14) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION Page 2 

84

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569 
OMB EXPIRATION DATE: 4/30/2017 

FAA Form 5100-100 (5/14) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION 

PART II – SECTION C 

The Sponsor hereby represents and certifies as follows: 

1. Compatible Land Use – The Sponsor has taken the following actions to assure compatible usage of land adjacent to
or in the vicinity of the airport: 

2. Defaults – The Sponsor is not in default on any obligation to the United States or any agency of the United States
Government relative to the development, operation, or maintenance of any airport, except as stated herewith: 

3. Possible Disabilities – There are no facts or circumstances (including the existence of effective or proposed leases,
use agreements or other legal instruments affecting use of the Airport or the existence of pending litigation or other legal 
proceedings) which in reasonable probability might make it impossible for the Sponsor to carry out and complete the 
Project or carry out the provisions of the Grant Assurances, either by limiting its legal or financial ability or otherwise, 
except as follows: 

4. Consistency with Local Plans – The project is reasonably consistent with plans (existing at the time of submission of
this application) of public agencies that are authorized by the State in which the project is located to plan for the 
development of the area surrounding the airport. 

5. Consideration of Local Interest – It has given fair consideration to the interest of communities in or near where the
project may be located. 

6. Consultation with Users – In making a decision to undertake any airport development project under Title 49, United
States Code, it has undertaken reasonable consultations with affected parties using the airport which project is proposed. 

7. Public Hearings – In projects involving the location of an airport, an airport runway or a major runway extension, it has
afforded the opportunity for public hearings for the purpose of considering the economic, social, and environmental effects 
of the airport or runway location and its consistency with goals and objectives of such planning as has been carried out by 
the community and it shall, when requested by the Secretary, submit a copy of the transcript of such hearings to the 
Secretary. Further, for such projects, it has on its management board either voting representation from the communities 
where the project is located or has advised the communities that they have the right to petition the Secretary concerning a 
proposed project. 

8. Air and Water Quality Standards – In projects involving airport location, a major runway extension, or runway location
it will provide for the Governor of the state in which the project is located to certify in writing to the Secretary that the 
project will be located, designed, constructed, and operated so as to comply with applicable and air and water quality 
standards. In any case where such standards have not been approved and where applicable air and water quality 
standards have been promulgated by the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency, certification shall be 
obtained from such Administrator. Notice of certification or refusal to certify shall be provided within sixty days after the 
project application has been received by the Secretary. 

Page 3a 

85

The snow removal equipment procurement is an AIP eligible project and the equipment will be used within the limits of the Hays 
Regional Airport.

None.

None.

Yes.

Yes.

Yes.

Not required.

Agreed as applicable.



OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569 
OMB EXPIRATION DATE: 4/30/2017 

FAA Form 5100-100 (5/14) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION 

PART II – SECTION C (Continued) 

9. Exclusive Rights – There is no grant of an exclusive right for the conduct of any aeronautical activity at any airport 
owned or controlled by the Sponsor except as follows: 

10. Land – (a) The sponsor holds the following property interest in the following areas of land* which are to be developed 
or used as part of or in connection with the Airport subject to the following exceptions, encumbrances, and adverse 
interests, all of which areas are identified on the aforementioned property map designated as Exhibit “A”: 

The Sponsor further certifies that the above is based on a title examination by a qualified attorney or title company and 
that such attorney or title company has determined that the Sponsor holds the above property interests. 

(b) The Sponsor will acquire within a reasonable time, but in any event prior to the start of any construction work 
under the Project, the following property interest in the following areas of land* on which such construction work is to be 
performed, all of which areas are identified on the aforementioned property map designated as Exhibit “A”: 

(c) The Sponsor will acquire within a reasonable time, and if feasible prior to the completion of all construction 
work under the Project, the following property interest in the following areas of land* which are to be developed or used 
as part of or in connection with the Airport as it will be upon completion of the Project, all of which areas are identified on 
the aforementioned property map designated as Exhibit “A” 

*State the character of property interest in each area and list and identify for each all exceptions, encumbrances, and adverse 
interests of every kind and nature, including liens, easements, leases, etc. The separate areas of land need only be identified here by 
the area numbers shown on the property map. 

 

Page 3b 

86

None.

The City of Hays maintains property interest for this project as shown on the Exh. A dated 6/6/08, filed under AIP 3-20-0028-15/16.

Not applicable for this project.

Not applicable for this project.



OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569 
OMB EXPIRATION DATE: 4/30/2017 

FAA Form 5100-100 (5/14) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION 

PART III – BUDGET INFORMATION – CONSTRUCTION

SECTION A – GENERAL 

1. Federal Domestic Assistance Catalog Number:

2. Functional or Other Breakout:

SECTION B – CALCULATION OF FEDERAL GRANT 

Cost Classification 
Use only for revisions Total 

Amount 
Required Latest Approved 

Amount 
Adjustment 

+ or (-) 

1. Administration expense $ $ $ 
2. Preliminary expense

3. Land, structures, right-of-way

4. Architectural engineering basic fees

Page 4 

5. Other Architectural engineering fees

6. Project inspection fees

7. Land development

8. Relocation Expenses

9. Relocation payments to Individuals and Businesses

10. Demolition and removal

11. Construction and project improvement

12. Equipment

13. Miscellaneous

14. Total (Lines 1 through 13)

15. Estimated Income (if applicable)

16. Net Project Amount (Line 14 minus 15)

17. Less: Ineligible Exclusions

18. Add:  Contingencies

19. Total Project Amt. (Excluding Rehabilitation Grants)

20. Federal Share requested of Line 19

21. Add Rehabilitation Grants Requested (100 Percent)

22. Total Federal grant requested  (lines 20 & 21)

23. Grantee share

24. Other shares

25. Total Project (Lines 22, 23 & 24) $ $ $ 

87

20.106

Airport Improvement Program

2,000.00

13,830.00

157,524.00

173,354.00

173,354.00

173,354.00

156,018.00

156,018.00

17,336.00

173,354.00



OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569 
OMB EXPIRATION DATE: 4/30/2017 

FAA Form 5100-100 (5/14) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION 

SECTION C – EXCLUSIONS 

Classification Ineligible for 
Participation 

(1) 

Excluded From  
Contingency Provision 

(2) 

a. $ $ 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

g. Totals $ $ 

SECTION D – PROPOSED METHOD OF FINANCING NON-FEDERAL SHARE 

27. Grantee Share

a. Securities

$ 

Page 5 

$

b. Mortgages

c. Appropriations (By Applicant)

d. Bonds

e. Tax Levies

f. Non Cash

g. Other (Explain)

h. TOTAL - Grantee share

28. Other Shares

a. State

b. Other

c. Total Other Shares

29. TOTAL

SECTION E – REMARKS 

PART IV – PROGRAM NARRATIVE (Attach – See Instructions)

88

17,336.00

17,336.00

17,336.00

rjryan
Text Box
 (Cash)



OMB CONTROL NUMBER: 2120-0569 
OMB EXPIRATION DATE: 4/30/2017 

FAA Form 5100-100 (5/14) SUPERSEDES PREVIOUS EDITION 

PART IV 
PROGRAM NARRATIVE 

(Suggested Format) 

PROJECT : 

AIRPORT : 

1. Objective: 

2. Benefits Anticipated: 

3. Approach: (See approved Scope of Work in Final Application) 

4. Geographic Location: 

 
Page 6 

5. If Applicable, Provide Additional Information: 

6. Sponsor’s Representative: (include address & telephone number) 

89

Procure Snow Removal Equipment

Hays Regional Airport

Hays Regional Airport has approximately 894,600 square feet of critical snow removal area. This includes the primary runway, parallel 
taxiway, general aviation apron, and fire rescue/emergency routes. The Airport is required to remove snowfall from these primary 
areas within 1 hour for aircraft operations. According to the FAA Snow Removal Equipment worksheet, the Airport is required to have 
this equipment. The procurement of a new 12-foot runway broom will bring the Airport into compliance with this requirement and make 
the facilities safer for all users during snowfall events. 

The anticipated benefits of the project are to potentially increase snow removal efficiency at the airport to provide safer pavements for 
Airport operations during snowfall events. 

There are no interruptions anticipated at the Airport due to this project. 

The Hays Regional Airport is located in Hays, Kansas.

Organizations participating on the project include:  
Sponsor – City of Hays, Kansas 
Consultant – Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company  
Federal Agency – Federal Aviation Administration.

Mr. Greg Sund 
Director of Public Works 
1507 Main Street, P.O. Box 490 
Hays, Kansas 67601 (785-628-7350)



90



 

Memo 
To: City Commission 

From: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 

Date: 3-7-16 

Re: 2016 EAS Bids 

The current Essential Air Service (EAS) contract to provide commercial passenger service at 
the Hays Regional Airport expires July 31, 2016. On January 27, 2016, the US Department of 
Transportation solicited proposals for the 2016-2018 contract period. Proposals were 
submitted to serve the Hays Regional Airport by SkyWest Airlines, Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd., 
and Via Air. As part of the selection process, the Department of Transportation seeks 
community comment. Our comments and recommendation are to be submitted no later than 
March 31st. A summary of the three bids follows. 
 
SkyWest Airlines 
 
SkyWest submitted a proposal to continue service at the Hays Regional Airport. The 
configuration would remain the same with 12 flights per week under the United Express 
brand. SkyWest is an extremely stable company with topnotch equipment and staff. 
Reliability and customer service with SkyWest has been excellent.  
 
SkyWest, under the United Express brand, offers dynamic pricing via the United system. An 
example of dynamic pricing is that a roundtrip flight from Hays to Denver may cost $300; 
however, on the same day, it may cost $350 to fly roundtrip from Hays to Houston, or $390 to 
fly roundtrip from Hays to Seattle. The dynamic pricing model affords the flying passengers 
at the Hays Regional Airport an exceptional value.  
 
 
 
 

City of Hays 
Office of the City Manager 

91



Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd. 
 
Great Lakes submitted a proposal that allows two options. The first option is two flights per 
day on a 30-passenger Brasilia EMB 120 turboprop. The second option provides three flights 
per day utilizing the same aircraft. The three-flight option requires a higher subsidy amount 
yet does not appear conducive to higher utilization. Great Lakes code shares with United 
Airlines. Great Lakes does not have dynamic pricing. The ticket from Hays to Denver is a 
fixed price and added to the cost of a round-trip flight from Denver.  
 
Staff has a few issues with the Great Lakes proposal. Great Lakes is anticipating a higher 
passenger count using a 30-passenger turboprop than SkyWest using a 50-passenger 
regional jet with a significantly higher reliability rating and better brand. Great Lakes is also 
stating a completion factor of 98%, a number they did not come close to achieving when they 
serviced Hays in the past. Staff has significant concerns about Great Lakes’ dependability, 
reliability, and customer service practices. Staff also has concerns with the financial viability 
of Great Lakes. Lastly, staff would like to point out that in May of 2014, Great Lakes 
discontinued service in Hays as soon as it was announced that SkyWest had been awarded 
the next EAS contract. This left us without service for 80 days. Staff could not find a positive 
reference for Great Lakes.  
 
Via Air 
 
Via Air is a relative newcomer to the Essential Air Service Program, with a background in 
charter flights. Via Air bid 12 flights per week utilizing 30-passenger ERJ jets. The Via Air 
proposal has a few errors where they make reference to Hays, Nebraska, Kearny and 
mention of both 30- and 50-passenger jets.  
 
Via Air is a secure airline meaning passengers would go through security in Hays; however, 
Via Air does not have code share agreements with other airlines. If checking luggage, a 
passenger would be required to retrieve his/her luggage in Denver, check in with the 
appropriate airline, and then go back through security to re-enter the terminal area. The      
Via Air ticket would be an add-on charge as mentioned in the Great Lakes section.  
 
City staff recommends supporting SkyWest for the 2016-2018 EAS contract. SkyWest offers 
first class service, reliability, and equipment, as well as the best value to the flying public. It is 
a very stable company offering the United brand in Hays. City staff sees no reason to 
recommend a change at this time.  
 
aw 
 
Attachments 

92



Airline Proposed Aircraft
Flights 

per 
Week

Airline Code 
Share?

Average 
Fare Departs Hays Arrives Hays Required Annual 

Subsidy Rate

SkyWest
CRJ-200 - 50 seat 

regional jet 12 Yes - United $100
Same as Current 
10:20 am, 5:50pm

Same as Current 
9:50am, 5:20pm $3,482,353

Via Air
ERJ-145 - 30 seat 

regional jet 12 No $89 8:30am, 2:15pm 10:45am, 4:30pm $2,816,810
Great 
Lakes 
(2x 
Daily)

EMB120 - 30 seat 
turbo prop 12 Yes - United $91 8:30am, 2:17pm 1:57pm, 8:04pm $2,470,022

Great 
Lakes 
(3x 
Daily)

EMB120 - 30 seat 
turbo prob 18 Yes - United $90

8:30am, 12:17pm, 
2:17pm

11:57am, 1:57pm, 
8:04pm $2,998,952

93



94



95



96



Before the United States Department of Transportation

Washington, DC

February 29, 2016

Essential Air Service at:

HAYS, KANSAS Docket OST-1998-3497

under 49 U.S.C. 41731 et.seq.

This document contains Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd.'s response to Order Requesting 
Proposals 2016-1-10.

Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd. is pleased to submit these proposals for Hays, Kansas.

Questions and comments may be referred to:

Charles Howell
President
Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd.
1022 Airport Parkway
Cheyenne, WY  82001
(307) 432-7000

Our proposals contemplate conveniently timed connecting services to our Denver hub, whereby 
passengers may utilize our code-share agreements with United Airlines.  Local service will be 
marketed and priced utilizing the Great Lakes (ZK) brand and reservations system.  Additionally, 
Great Lakes maintains interline ticketing and baggage agreements with the majority of the other 
carriers serving Denver, including interline e-ticketing agreements with American Airlines, Delta 
Airlines (with the ability to earn Delta Skymiles) and United Airlines.  All of which will offer 
passengers traveling to and from these communities supplemental access to the domestic and 
international air transportation system.

Great Lakes is providing two schedule options and aircraft types. The first of which is two daily 
weekday roundtrips and two weekend roundtrips utilizing Brasilia EMB-120 equipment. The 
second option utilizes Beech 1900 aircraft in a three round trip pattern weekdays and three 
round trip over the weekend. Great Lakes believes that we will be enabled, with the support of 
the community, to stimulate traffic development by offering additional seats at discounted fares.

97



Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd.
Annual Compensation Requirements for Essential Air Service at

Hays, Kansas to Denver, Colorado (DEN )
Two Round Trips - 30 Seat Aircraft

98.0% completion factor

Departures: 1,223
Block Hours: 1,590
Revenue Passenger Miles: 5,197,500
Available Seat Miles: 10,896,930

Operating Revenues:
Passenger: HYS-DEN 17,500 psgrs at $91.26 $1,597,050

Other: (at 0.62% of passenger revenue) $9,902

Total Operating Revenues: $1,606,952

Operating Expenses:
Direct: Aircraft and Hull Insurance $721,710

Fuel and Oil $767,903
Flying Operations $486,492
Maintenance $748,959

Total Direct Expenses: $2,725,064

Total Indirect Expenses: $1,157,768

Total Operating Expenses: $3,882,833

Operating Loss ($2,275,881)
Profit Element (5.0% of Total Operating Expenses) $194,142

Annual Compensation Requirement: $2,470,022

Representative Schedule
***  [HYS]   Hays, Kansas  ***

 -------------------- D E P A R T U R E S --------------------
 FLT DPT ARR TO EQP FREQ
3021 8:30 8:52 DEN 30 Seat 123456

3024 14:17 14:39 DEN 30 Seat 12345.7

 -------------------- A R R I V A L S --------------------
FLT EQP FREQ FROM DPT ARR
3024 30 Seat 12345.7 DEN 11:40 13:57

3028 30 Seat 12345.7 DEN 18:00 20:04

No Upline Scheduling Restrictions

98



Great Lakes Aviation, Ltd.
Annual Compensation Requirements for Essential Air Service at

Hays, Kansas to Denver, Colorado (DEN )
Three Round Trips - 30 Seat Aircraft

98.0% completion factor

Departures: 1,835
Block Hours: 2,385
Revenue Passenger Miles: 8,167,500
Available Seat Miles: 16,349,850

Operating Revenues:
Passenger: HYS-DEN 27,500 psgrs at $89.97 $2,474,175

Other: (at 0.62% of passenger revenue) $15,340

Total Operating Revenues: $2,489,515

Operating Expenses:
Direct: Aircraft and Hull Insurance $721,710

Fuel and Oil $1,149,966
Flying Operations $729,738
Maintenance $1,123,563

Total Direct Expenses: $3,724,978

Total Indirect Expenses: $1,502,134

Total Operating Expenses: $5,227,112

Operating Loss ($2,737,597)
Profit Element (5.0% of Total Operating Expenses) $261,356

Annual Compensation Requirement: $2,998,952

Representative Schedule
***  [HYS]   Hays, Kansas  ***

 -------------------- D E P A R T U R E S --------------------
 FLT DPT ARR TO EQP FREQ
3021 8:30 8:52 DEN 30 Seat 123456
3022 12:17 12:39 DEN 30 Seat 12345.7
3024 14:17 14:39 DEN 30 Seat 12345.7

 -------------------- A R R I V A L S --------------------
FLT EQP FREQ FROM DPT ARR
3022 30 Seat 12345.7 DEN 9:40 11:57
3024 30 Seat 12345.7 DEN 11:40 13:57
3028 30 Seat 12345.7 DEN 18:00 20:04

No Upline Scheduling Restrictions

99



 

 

 

 

 

 

Response to Order:  

Order: 2016-1-10 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

Department Of Transportation 

 
Docket DOT- OST-1998-3497 

Proposal to Provide EAS at  

 

HAYS, NEBRASKA 

 
February 29, 2016

100



218 Jackson Street ·· Maitland, FL 32751 ·· (407) 374-2429 ·· Fax (407) 374-2429 ·· Planning@flyviaair.com 

ViaAir LLC Proprietary information Page 2 of 6 

 

 

February 29, 2016 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 
 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

In response to Order 2016-1-10, Via Air is pleased to submit the attached proposal for EAS service. 

ViaAir LLC is an indirect Air Carrier operating under DOT Regulation 14 CFR 380 together with Via Airlines as 

the Direct Air Carrier on 50 Pax ERJ-145 (“ViaAir”). 

ViaAir will be the contracting and the Indirect Air Carrier of the proposed EAS service. 

Our proposal includes the use of Denver International Airport (DEN) as the hub.  DEN is the currently serviced 

Hub and offers the advantage of minimal changes to the community.  
 

Via Airlines is Part 135 Air Carrier Certificate number GN0A005I with DOT Commuter Air Carrier 
authorization and is in the final process of its 121 certification. The company was founded in 1997 and has 
grown to become a prominent charter commuter air carrier operating EMB 120 and ERJ-145 in 30 passenger 
configuration while maintaining an excellent safety record and one of the highest dispatch rates in the 
nation. The company has earned an ARG/US Gold rating and continuously strives and maintains best in class 
safety, quality and customer satisfaction. 

Our experienced team understands the unique requirements of on-schedule operation and that being on time 
is part of our core service. We pride ourselves at being more than just transportation; as such we always go 
above and beyond as proven in our excellent client satisfaction rate. 

The proposed subsidy requirements and schedules are provided in the attached exhibits for the community of 

Kearney EAS service. The costs used to calculate the subsidy are based on our multi-year annual cost analysis. 

 

ViaAir hereby certifies that we are in compliance with Department regulations regarding drug- free workplaces, 
nondiscrimination and with the regulations governing lobbying activities. We understand that upon selection, 
we will be required to complete the required certifications. 

We look forward to hearing from you and hopefully provide you with the flight services you need. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Irit Vizer 

President  

irit@flyviaair.com  

101

mailto:Planning@flyviaair.com
mailto:irit@flyviaair.com


218 Jackson Street ·· Maitland, FL 32751 ·· (407) 374-2429 ·· Fax (407) 374-2429 ·· Planning@flyviaair.com 

ViaAir LLC Proprietary information Page 3 of 6 

 

 

About ViaAir 
ViaAir LLC is an indirect Air Carrier operating under DOT Regulation 14 CFR 380 together with Via Airlines as 

the Direct Air Carrier (“ViaAir”). ViaAir LLC will be the contracting and the Indirect Air Carrier of the proposed 

EAS service. 

Via Airlines as the Direct Air Carrier has been providing Air transportation service for over 19 years 

operating 30 passenger EMB-120 and ERJ-145. We are proud to have been providing such service with an  

excellent completion rate better than 99.9% for our scheduled service, which includes our AEAS route in 

Beckley, WV.  We also have excellent safety record and client oriented service and support.   

 

Above and Beyond 
We still believe that Air Service is a service and not just means of transportation. Our experienced team 

understands that client satisfaction and community support are critical to the creation of a successful flight 

operation. We pride ourselves at being more than just transportation; as such we always go above and 

beyond as proven in our excellent client satisfaction rate. 

Via Airlines was founded in 1997 and has grown to become a prominent Air Carrier operating 30 passenger 

planes while maintaining an excellent safety record and an excellent dispatch rates. The company has earned 

an ARG/US Gold rating and continuously strives and maintains best-in-class safety, quality and customer 

satisfaction. 

Fleet 

The ERJ-145 is ideal for the requirements detailed in 

the Order. As an airplane built to meet the more 

demanding requirements of FAR-25 it is safe, 

reliable and fast. Operated by over 27 operators 

worldwide and over 5 million flight hours, it has 

great positive past records. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

102

mailto:Planning@flyviaair.com


218 Jackson Street ·· Maitland, FL 32751 ·· (407) 374-2429 ·· Fax (407) 374-2429 ·· Planning@flyviaair.com 

ViaAir LLC Proprietary information Page 4 of 6 

 

 

Reservation System 

ViaAir is utilizing AmeliaRes as its reservation system. AmeliaRes is a complete Airline Reservation, ticketing 

and Departure Control System allowing our passengers to easily book, ticket, and manage their reservation. 

Currently, we are working on implementing three of the major GDS Systems (Sabre, Apollo and Wordspan) to 

maximize distribution channels.  Sabre will be live within the first two weeks of March 2016. 

ViaAir and the Communities 

At ViaAir, we work closely with our clients and the communities we serve. This is even more important when 

providing Essential  Air  Service where the direct communication between our executive team and the 

community officials is key. As part of ViaAir’s integration with the community, we intend, as allowed by 

applicable laws, to maximize the use of 

local vendors by providing preference to 

local vendors and employees. ViaAir 

intends to use any local service provider 

that is able to provide a required service 

at a similar quality level and at least the 

same cost as non‐local vendors (e.g. 

catering and ground service, customer 

support, etc.). 

ViaAir plans to heavily promote the air 

service to the community by utilizing 

media ads, online marketing, and 

sponsoring local events. 

 

 

 

  

103

mailto:Planning@flyviaair.com


218 Jackson Street ·· Maitland, FL 32751 ·· (407) 374-2429 ·· Fax (407) 374-2429 ·· Planning@flyviaair.com 

ViaAir LLC Proprietary information Page 5 of 6 

 

 

Exhibit A – Sample Schedule 
 

 This is a sample schedule, ViaAir intends to communicate with the community on a desired schedule and 

evaluate any potential changes to the departure times (also after service start date) as long as it within the FAA 

and DOT regulations, specifically crew duty day requirements. 
 

HYS-DEN 
 

Orig Dest Dept Arr Equip Days Stops

HYS DEN 8:30 8:15 ERJ-145 Daily (1) Non-Stop

DEN HYS 9:00 10:45 ERJ-145 Mon-Fri (1) Non-Stop

HYS DEN 14:15 14:00 ERJ-145 Mon-Fri (1) Non-Stop

DEN HYS 14:45 16:30 ERJ-145 Daily (1) Non-Stop  
 

 

104

mailto:Planning@flyviaair.com


218 Jackson Street ·· Maitland, FL 32751 ·· (407) 374-2429 ·· Fax (407) 374-2429 ·· Planning@flyviaair.com 

ViaAir LLC Proprietary information Page 6 of 6 

 

 

Exhibit B - Financial Information 
 

 

EAS Station HYS

Hub DEN

Round trips per week 12

Completion Factor 98%

Total Passengers 14,167                

Total Block Hours 840                     

Total Departures 1,223                  

Per Ticket revenue to carrier 89.00$                

Passenger  Revenue 1,260,852$        

Other Revenue 12,609$             

Total Revenue 1,273,461$        

Crew 341,880$           

Fuel and De-Ice 1,140,200$        

Maintenance 735,000$           

Aircraft 462,000$           

Landing and Airport cost 679,106$           

Total Directs 3,358,186$        

Total Indirects 537,310$           

Total Operating 3,895,496$        

Profit @5% 194,775$           

Economic Cost 4,090,271$        

Required Annual Subsidy Rate 2,816,810$         

105

mailto:Planning@flyviaair.com

	3-17-16 Work Session Memo
	3-17-16 Work Session Agenda
	3-3-16 Work Session Notes
	USD 489 Sales Tax Petition
	Airport Snow Broom Acquisition
	2016 EAS Bids



